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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies
to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such
companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents
of this annual report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (“Directors”) of First Credit Finance Group Limited
(“Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this annual report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report
misleading.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 @ 57 i@ &R D 17

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) continued to focus on conducting
money lending business by providing both secured and unsecured loans to
customers, including individuals, corporations and foreign domestic workers.
The Group's average loan balance decreased from approximately HK$834.50
million as at 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$611.73 million as at 31
December 2022.

Since the outbreak of Omicron variant in early 2022, significantly impacting the
economy of Hong Kong, the Group’s money lending business was inevitably
affected, in terms of customer repayment and the decrease of customer
visits due to more stringent social distancing measures. Notwithstanding the
challenging operational environment, our Group try our best effort to maintain
our services to our customers.

The prevailing adverse financial and economic condition caused by the
coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") pandemic has posed negative impacts
on the financial position and repayment ability of the Group’s customers
and the resulting uncertainties may continue to bring adverse impact to the
business performance of the Group in the short term. The Group expects
that such challenging and unpredictable environment may affect the loan
demand and market risks of the Group. Therefore, the Group will continue to
evaluate its risk management measures and ensure a proper balance between
return and risk in the long run. To maintain its loan portfolio, the Group will
continue to adopt prudent and cautious approaches, in particular, during the
loan assessment and approval process. The Group will also keep on closely
monitoring the repayment performance of its loan portfolio and evaluating the
repayment ability of the customers.

The Group had also conducted assessment on liquidity positions and working
capital sufficiency of the Group to evaluate the influence of the COVID-19
pandemic on the business of the Group. After considering the nature of the
money lending business which has no minimum capital requirement, the size
of the Company and the Group's bank and cash balances of approximately
HK$19.84 million as at 31 December 2022, it was considered that the
Company would have sufficient funds to maintain its operations under
the prevailing economic environment. At the same time, the Group has
endeavoured to control its expenses by taking various measures in budget
control.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Looking forward, with the ultimate aim to maximise value for shareholders and
enhance its position in the competitive industry, the Group will continue to
strive for maintaining revenue and credit quality on the basis of its experience
in money lending business. Meanwhile, the Group will closely monitor its
capital base from time to time to ensure sufficient funding is maintained
through various means for capturing different potential opportunities.

Overall economy is expected to pick up in light of the lifting of majority of
the COVID-19 pandemic prevention and containment measures. However, the
money lending industry is affected by the change of statutory interest rate cap,
which had been amended from 60 percent to 48 percent per annum since the
end of 2022. The money lending business remains challenging in 2023, we
shall closely monitor the operation and the risk level of the Group, in order to
stay competitive in the market.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

The Group’'s revenue for the year under review was derived from interest
received from the provision of various types of loan products to its customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue generated was
approximately HK$50.69 million, representing a decrease of approximately
15.85% from the revenue of approximately HK$60.24 million recorded for the

year ended 31 December 2021.

The decrease in revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease in accrued
interest from credit-impaired loans receivables during the year under review.
The Company will continue to monitor the credit risk of the loans receivables
from time to time and modify its credit assessments and control measures

when necessary.

For the year under review, the revenue of past due less than 3 months and
over 3 months but not impaired loans was approximately HK$2.64 million and

HK$7.06 million respectively.
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Revenue breakdown
W 23 BA 4R
2022

—g-=
HK$°000
THET

Unsecured loans ISR
Personal loans BABER 49,116
Corporate loans PEENR 6,523
Foreign domestic workers loans INMEREEETIER 1,371
Sub-total INEE 57,010
Secured loans AREER
First property mortgage loans BRMERBER 765
Subordinated property mortgage loans EERMEIRIBER 287
Other secured loans HihBEEER 2,177
Sub-total et 3,229
Total @st 60,239
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Management Discussion and Analysis &8 & 59 5@ & 20 3T continued #)

NET INTEREST MARGIN

The Group recorded a net interest margin of approximately 12.06% for the
year ended 31 December 2022 in respect of its money lending business.

The above net interest margin represented the ratio of net interest income
to the average balance of gross loans receivables as at the end of the year
under review after deducting certain amount of past due loans receivables
which were matured or impaired during the year under review. The net interest
margin calculated on the same basis for the corresponding period last year was
approximately 10.97%.

In respect of unsecured loans, the net interest margin increased from
approximately 11.61% for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
12.42% for the year ended 31 December 2022. Meanwhile, net interest
margin in respect of secured loans increased from approximately 8.59% for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately 10.22% for the year ended
31 December 2022.

Net interest margin
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2022 2021
—¥=-= —T_—4F
Unsecured loans EHAER
Individuals A 11.68% 9.36%
Corporations % 6.74% 19.70%
Foreign domestic workers INMERERET 44.13% 34.86%
Secured loans FIREER
Individuals B A 15.07% 10.88%
Corporations 1= 9.29% 6.96%
All loans BEER
Unsecured loans EIERER 12.42% 11.61%
Secured loans BHEBE R 10.22% 8.59%
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OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAIN AND LOSS

The Group's other income recorded an increase from approximately HK$0.43
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$0.72
million for the year ended 31 December 2022. The Group's other income for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was mainly attributable to the government
subsidy received under the Employment Support Scheme launched by the
government of Hong Kong under the “Anti-epidemic Fund”, whereas in 2021
was mainly attributable to the adjustment of long outstanding of temporary
receipt.

Meanwhile, the Group recorded other loss of approximately HK$29.54
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 as compared to other gain of
The
increase in other loss was mainly attributable to the increase in fair value loss

approximately HK$0.33 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

on financial assets at FVTPL.

Details of other income and other gain and loss are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses for the year under review mainly
comprised employment expenses, occupancy costs for its office and
depreciation charges. Employment expenses included directors’ emoluments,
employees’ salaries and allowances, bonuses, pension scheme contributions
and insurance premium for employees, etc. Administrative expenses also
included repair and maintenance and general insurance premiums etc.
Occupancy costs included management fees, government rent and rates as

well as utilities expenses.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 12 & 57 5& 5D HT «continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's administrative expenses
decreased and recorded at approximately HK$13.86 million as compared to
approximately HK$13.92 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 which
was mainly attributable to the decrease in depreciation charges for the year
under review.

Administrative expenses

HE-_T-_ -+ _A=Z+—HIEFE &X&E
B 8917 I8 B SR A 3 8515 4913,860,0007% 7T+ M
HE-Z -+ -A=+—-BILEENHA
13,920,000 7 It D E EHREEFEMNITE
BRI -

TERMX
2022
—E-=

HK$'000

TFHET
Employment expenses EEMX 9,351 9,103
Occupancy costs for its office A= AR 199 257
Depreciation charges neEEA 2,866 3,376
Repair and maintenance and others HEREREMAS 1,051 590
General insurance premiums —RORBRE 397 595
Total st 13,864 13,921

IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON LOANS RECEIVABLES FEW & TR E B 1R

The Group's impairment loss mainly relates to expected credit loss (“ECL")
allowance for loans receivables. Generally speaking, ECL assessment is done
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date, including time value of money where appropriate. The ECL on loans
receivables are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances and/
or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded an impairment
loss on loans receivables of approximately HK$43.14 million as compared to
approximately HK$57.75 million for the corresponding period in 2021. The
decrease in impairment loss on loans receivables was principally due to a
decrease in loss on derecognition of loans receivables.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &2 & 5V 5 & 2D M «continued #)

The Group performs collective assessment on impairment allowance for the
loans receivables at least on a quarterly basis by dividing its loans receivables
into different groups according to the loan types, with each loan type sharing
similar credit risk characteristics, and calculates the ECL for each loan type.
The measurement of impairment allowance for collective assessment is mainly
based on the amount of loans receivables of each loan type at a point of time
and will take into account the probability of default (which may be affected by
the duration of delinquency and is calculated by using the adjusted transition
rate as the key input from the Markov Chain Model) and loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default which is estimated with
reference to the loans receivables’ historical bad debt recovery rate and cash
flows from the realisation of its collateral, if any) pertaining to that particular
loan type, which are derived from the assessment made by the external
professional valuer as at the latest year-end date based on the historical
repayment performance of different loan types and adjusted by forward-
looking information such as the economic and financial environment and
expected unemployment rate, etc.

The Group also performs monthly individual assessment on impairment
allowance for the loans receivables. For individual assessment, the amount of
impairment allowance on loans receivables will be considered on a case-by-
case basis by way of discounted cash flow, taking into account, among other
factors, the expected date of recovery and the fair value of the collateral (if
any).

For further details of the accounting policies regarding the impairment of
financial assets (including loans receivables) and the financial risk management
policies in respect of loans receivables, please refer to section E of note 4 and
section C of note 28 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

Credit risk assessments were performed by the Group before each loan was
advanced. Identity checks, financial background checks and, where applicable,
relevant public searches (such as litigation search, company search and
land search) were conducted on the borrowers and, where applicable, the
guarantor and/or the underlying companies whose shares were charged to
the Group as security. In credit assessment, the Group will normally take into
account factors including, but not limited to personal financial background
and repayment ability of the borrowers, internal and external credit checking
results, the borrowers’ repayment records in other financial institutions and,
where applicable, value of the to-be-pledged collateral and the availability of
any guarantee. During the year under review, the Group was satisfied with the
credit worthiness and the repayment ability of the borrowers after conducting
the credit risk assessment.

The Group also adopted a “two eyes” process requiring credit approval at
successively higher levels or by the credit committee of the board of Directors
("Board”) depending on, among other things, the size and nature of the

proposed transactions.

Subsequent to the drawdown of loans, to ensure that loans repayments are
punctual and past due accounts are handled efficiently, the Group actively
reviews and monitors the loan repayment status under the supervision of the
management on a regular basis.

During the year under review, the Group has closely monitored the loans
receivables for the purpose of assessing credit risk and has put more effort in
the collection procedures of the loans receivables, such as making phone calls
and sending reminders to the relevant customers from time to time. The Group
may also negotiate with customers on the repayment arrangements on a case-
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by-case basis according to the circumstances of the customers, especially [ B FERERNERBN ~AEERSTHEH
during the COVID-19 pandemic. Legal actions may be brought against the R FEHEUAEITE) -
relevant customers depending on the actual circumstances on a case-by-case
basis.
Impairment loss on loans receivables
W B R R EEE
2022 2021
—g=-= —ET-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TH#T FH&T
ECL on individual assessment BUHEMTEREEER (922) 84,518
ECL on collective assessment SRIEHNTEREEERR 44,066 (26,767)
Total @5 43,144 57,751
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Management Discussion and Analysis & I8 & 51 & 5D M continued #)

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

- The Group's other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December 2022

mainly comprised legal and professional fees, service fees of debt recovery
agencies and other general expenses.

As compared to approximately HK$15.04 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December
2022 decreased to approximately HK$10.10 million, which was mainly owing
to the decrease in service fees of debt recovery agencies as well as the
decrease in valuation fee and advertising and promotion expenses.

Other operating expenses

Hib SR

Hh 48 & R

AEBHE-_TZ_F+_A=+T—HLFEHN
EMmEERTTEZRRBEEREEER EKA
WRIERHS E R EAM— A -

BEE T -_—F+A=+—HLEFEY
15,040,000 cAtk B E-_T = _F+=
A=+ BLFENEMEERIRIEY
10,100,000/ 70 + Z R E KB KA IR B
DURGEEEBRRES RERRSR DA

2022
—g=-=

HK$’'000
FHET

Audit fees HTEA 800
Advertising and promotion expenses BERERMAS 1,180
Legal and professional fees EREREXER 3,581
Service fees of debt recovery agencies BEHEBERRIEREE 5,924
Valuation fee HEER 713
Other general expenses Hh—MHAx 2,846
Total @t 15,044
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FINANCE COSTS

The Group’s finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2022 mainly
comprised interest on lease liabilities and interest on bond payable. Finance
costs decreased and recorded at approximately HK$0.55 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022, as compared to approximately HK$0.90 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Finance costs

EEJZ ujnHﬂ& Tﬁ (continued &)

M EM

AEBEBE-T-_—_F+-_A=+—HBLFEHXN
HHER FTERFRHEaENF B REMES
WNE - HEZZE-_=ZF+=-A=+—HILFE"
B8 AR W18 4550,0008 T MEE -
——H+=ZA=1+—B1FE8I%900,000/ T °

MBER
2022
—g-=

HK$'000

TFHEIT
Interest on lease liabilities HEEBEHNFE 151 76
Interest on consideration payable ERREHFE - 40
Interest on bond payable FEfHEHE TS 400 788
Total fast 551 904

LOSS FOR THE YEAR

For the year under review, the Group recorded an increase in the consolidated
loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$182.48
million as compared to the consolidated loss attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$31.54 million for the year ended 31 December
2021,
convertible bonds for the year under review and (i) an increase other loss

which is principally due to (i) a significant increase in written off of

for the year under review as disclosed in notes 20 and 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FREE

HEEBE T —F+_-_A=+—HULFELA
AlEA AELERE B E%31,540,0008 7T R A
BFEE AEEHBAAREEARERAEIE
32 1N 49182,480,00078 7T+ It Ty = Z B ()E B F
ErRREFOMBEREE N REBEFEHE
fth BE5 48 35 DN BT B (A0 4R & B 7% 3R 3% B9 RE 20 B BT 79
FERBATHE) -

F-ERAEAESEARAF —B-_FFH
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

For the year under review, the Group financed its operations by cash flow from
operating activities.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$19.84 million (2021:
all of which were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. There is no minimum

approximately HK$23.43 million),

capital requirement for the Group’s principal money lending business. The
Board considers that the cash level of the Group as at 31 December 2022 was

satisfactory in terms of fund utilisation.

There was no bank borrowing as at 31 December 2022 and 2021. As at 31
December 2022, the Group had fully settled the bond (2021: HK$9 million). As
for the details of the bond payable, please refer to note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the net current assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$236.62 million (2021:
and the current ratio, being the ratio of current assets to current liabilities, was

approximately HK$149.32 million)

approximately 125.19 times (2021: approximately 13.84 times). The decrease
in current ratio was mainly attributable to a decrease in bond payable for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The Group adopted a treasury policy with the aims to utilise the surplus and/or
idle funds of the Group and to achieve capital appreciation in the long-term.
Under the treasury policy, the Group may invest in diversified investment
products which the Board thinks fit, including but not limited to government

bonds, debt instruments and listed equity securities on the Stock Exchange.

Where appropriate, the Group may apply for loans and/or credit facilities from
independent third parties and banks and may conduct fund raising activities by
issuing equity shares and/or loan notes.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there had been no material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by the
Group. The Group had no specific future plan for material investments or
capital assets as at 31 December 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not hold any significant investments
exceeding 5% of the total asset value of the Group.

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 31 staff (2021: 28
staff). Total remuneration of employees (including directors’ emoluments)
for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately HK$9.10 million
(2021:
are formulated on the basis of performance, qualifications and experience of

approximately HK$8.79 million). The Group's remuneration policies

individual employees and with reference to the prevailing market conditions.
The remuneration packages of the employees of the Group comprise monthly
fixed salaries and discretionary year-end bonus which may be given to
employees based on their individual performance as recognition of and reward

for their contributions.

The Group adopted a staff training and development policy with the aims
to improve and enhance its competitiveness in the financial market as high
quality staff training forms the foundation of the provision of superior financial
services to the customers. Staff training (including the distribution of training
materials) is provided regularly on any updates or information in relation to
money lending, anti-money laundering (“AML") and anti-corruption with
reference to the fast-changing market environment, the business objectives of
the Group and the relevant requirements of the regulatory bodies.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Group’s assets was pledged as security
for liability.

GEARING RATIO

Gearing ratio is calculated as the net debt (being total liabilities less bank and
cash balances) divided by the sum of the adjusted capital (being the share
capital, retained profits/accumulated losses and other reserves) and net debt.

The Group recorded a net cash of approximately HK$17.93 million as at
31 December 2022 (2021:
Therefore, the Group has no gearing as at 31 December 2022 (2021: no

a net cash of approximately HK$11.13 million).

gearing ratio).

E%J: Dj *ﬁ (continued #&)
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year under review, the Group was principally engaged in the
money lending business in Hong Kong. As the revenue and cost of business
was principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the exposure to the risk
of foreign exchange rate fluctuations for the Group is minimal. Hence, no
financial instrument for hedging was employed during the year ended 31
December 2022.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$Nil).

SUSPENSION OF TRADING

Trading in the shares of the Company has been suspended since 24 November
2017 pursuant to the direction of the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong (“SFC”) made under Section 8(1) of the Securities and Futures
(Stock Market Listing) Rules (Chapter 571V of the Laws of Hong Kong) and will
remain suspended until further notice.

Announcements were made by the Company on 1 August 2018, 1 November
2018, 1 February 2019, 2 May 2019, 1 August 2019, 1 November 2019, 31
January 2020, 29 April 2020, 31 July 2020, 30 October 2020, 1 February
2021, 30 April 2021, 30 July 2021, 29 October 2021, 28 January 2022, 28
April 2022, 28 July 2022, 28 October 2022 and 27 January 2023 pursuant to
Rule 17.26A of the GEM Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 24 June 2019,
the Stock Exchange has withheld exercising its right to delist the Company
although trading in its shares remained suspended on 31 July 2019. As such,
trading in the shares of the Company will continue to be suspended until
further notice.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 27 January 2023,
the Company has continued its effort in communicating with and addressing
the concern of the SFC with a view to achieving a resumption of trading of
its shares as soon as possible. The Company's trade resumption application
is still pending and the Company is not in a position to provide any concrete
resumption timeframe at this stage. The Company and its legal representatives
will closely follow up with this matter.
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Corporate Governance Report T EBHRS

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report (“CG
Report”) for the year ended 31 December 2022. This CG Report highlights the
key corporate governance practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining statutory and
regulatory standards of corporate governance. The Board believes that sound
and reasonable corporate governance practices are essential for the growth of
the Group and for safeguarding the shareholders’ interests. The principles set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules have been applied in maintaining an effective
Board, sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders.

To the best knowledge of the Board, throughout the year ended 31 December
2022, save for the code provisions C.2.1 to C.2.9 and F.2.2 of the CG Code as
detailed below, the Company had complied with all the code provisions set out
in the CG Code and no other deviation from the CG Code during the year had
been noted by the Company.

Details of the deviations from code provisions C.2.1 to C.2.9 and F.2.2 of
the CG Code are set out under the paragraphs headed “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO")", "Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development Programme” and “Communications With Shareholders and
Investors and Investor Relations” in this CG Report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries of all the Directors, each of the Directors confirmed that he/she had
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022. No incident of non-compliance
during the year was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF THE BOARD

The Board has a balance of skill and experience and a balanced composition
of executive and non-executive Directors. It is responsible for formulating
the Group’s long-term strategy, determining and approving the Group's
significant transactions and supervising the management to ensure thorough
implementation of the Group’s policies and effective performance of their
duties. The Board also communicates with the shareholders of the Company
and regulatory bodies and makes recommendation to the shareholders on final
dividend and approves the declaration of any interim dividend.

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the strategic development of
the Company with the goal of maximising long-term shareholders’ value, while
balancing broader stakeholders’ interests.

The Company has complied with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules that the Board includes at least three independent non-executive
Directors, which represents at least one-third of the Board and at least one of
the independent non-executive Directors possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company received an annual confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors stating his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
"Biographical Details of Directors” from pages 38 to 40 of the annual report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary of
the Company (“Company Secretary”), management staff and the compliance
officer who is mainly responsible for ensuring that the Company is in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and advising the Board on compliance
matters. Directors are also provided with access to independent professional
advice, where necessary, in carrying out their obligations as Directors, at the
expense of the Company.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management to the executive
Directors and management staff of the Company who regularly review the
financial results and performance of the Group and make financial and
operational decisions for the implementation of strategies and plans approved
by the Board.

There is no relationship (financial, business, family or otherwise) between

members of the Board and between the chairman of the Board (“Chairman”)
and the chief executive officer of the Company (“CEO").
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ROTATION AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”), at each annual
general meeting (“AGM"), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Such
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, the Directors shall have the power from time
to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a
casual vacancy on the Board or, subject to authorisation by the shareholders
in general meeting, as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office until the next following AGM and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

The executive Directors have entered into service agreements with the
Company for a term of no more than three years. The Company has also issued
a letter of appointment to each of the independent non-executive Directors
for a term of two years. All Directors are subject to retirement, re-election and
removal in accordance with the Bye-laws.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual and code provisions C.2.2 to C.2.9 set out the main
responsibilities of the chairman. As disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 11 March 2020, Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, a former executive
Director and Chairman of the Board, passed away on 9 March 2020. Since then
and up to the date of this report, the position of the Chairman has remained
vacant. Compliance with code provisions C.2.1 to C.2.9 was therefore not
possible during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Notwithstanding the absence of a Chairman, the Board, which comprises
experienced Directors who meet from time to time to discuss issues affecting
the operation of the Group, has been able to continue performing its
functions effectively and efficiently. In view of the simple structure of the
Company, significant decisions are made by the Board as a whole while
the daily operation and management are monitored by the Chief Executive
Officer. Before each Board meeting, all Directors receive adequate information
and relevant documents in a timely manner and are properly briefed on
issues arising at Board meetings. All Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors, have made different contributions to the issues
discussed at the Board meetings and the Board was able to make and
implement decisions promptly in response to the changing environment.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, Ms. Ho Yuen May May acted as
the CEO. The CEO is responsible for overseeing the Company's day-to-day
management and operations as well as to implement objectives, strategies and
policies approved and delegated by the Board.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

As at the date of this CG Report, the Company had five independent non-
executive Directors and each of them entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of two years.

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

Regular Board meetings are scheduled to be held four times a year on a
quarterly basis with notice given to the Directors at least 14 days in advance.
For other Board meetings involving discussion and resolution of significant
issues in relation to the operation of the Company, notice is given in a
reasonable time in advance.

Before each Board meeting, all Directors are provided with a draft agenda and
the accompanying Board papers at least three days in advance or such other
period as agreed in order to allow the Directors to include any other matters
in the agenda that are required to be discussed or resolved at the meeting. To
enable the Directors to make informed decisions, adequate and appropriate
information in relation to the matters of the meeting are also sent to all
Directors in a timely manner. According to the GEM Listing Rules, any director
who or whose close associates (or associates for connected transactions) have
a material interest in the contract or arrangement or any other proposal to
be approved at a board meeting shall abstain from voting on the relevant
resolutions and not to be counted in the quorum at the meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping all minutes of the Board
meetings. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comments
within reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is made
available to them for their review and signing.
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The attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings and annual
general meeting during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the

following table:

Name of Directors
EEla

Executive Directors
BITES

Ms. Ho Yuen May May (CEQ)
gzt (7TBAAEE)
Ms. Lai Szu Yu
BRIt

Mr. Lui Cheuk Fung
REEEE

Ms. Xie Si

Bl

Independent non-executive Directors
BIAFPITES

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo
BRIASEE

Dr. Fung Kam Man
HER N E L

Mr. Li Long

FRERE

Mr. Wang Zhiwei
EHEMERE

Mr. Wong Kin Ning
mRESRL
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HERE,EHBITRE

Board Annual general

meeting

EEeEs

717

7/7

717

717

77

717

7/7

77

717

E-ERAEREEFRAF

meeting

BRRBEXE

m”m

I7Al

171
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Corporate Governance Report 1B B TR continued #)
DIRECTORS' INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

According to code provision C.1.1 of the CG Code, every newly appointed
director should receive a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
appointment. They also receive policies and procedures of the Company as
well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities under GEM
Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

Code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code requires all directors to participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. To ensure that all Directors’ contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant, during the year ended 31 December 2022, all the
Directors had participated in continuous professional development by attending
training courses provided by professional firms or institutions, or reading
materials provided by the Company regarding updates on the GEM Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. All Directors confirmed that they
had complied with the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code during the year

under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at the date of this report, the
audit committee comprised four independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo (chairman of the audit committee), Dr. Fung Kam
Man, Mr. Wang Zhiwei and Mr. Wong Kin Ning.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2022

EENMEAMMEESEERAE

RIBCEERTRHECIMETAGR BEHE
ENEEFUREXZERESZE EXARER
EfROMRERAM -REIGWERERRAZ
BELEFURIERESE R ZAELEER
ELFMABTEEZER UHEARETDBEEHR
REER ETFRAEEMEREERE T 2EE-

TEERATAECIMETARNELMBESES
HBEESERR UBRTFMENUREE B
BRAIAEFHESTSIFHENBREBHIER
REBE_T_—_F+_A=+—RBIEFE FHE
EEEREZLFEEEQ RSB BIRENZIIRE
S BEAN DA PTIRERIR GEM E AR B R AR B &S
EERMBEHENOMEME 2HEBEZTES

B-FBEECHRAESENREFEETLE
EIRSTRIEC A METRNE -

—E-FRY O AEEBEDE
ERTH -RARERY EXEEEH
VIFMITERAR  NEBREL (BRE
F)OBBXEL FTTEREERFERESR



The audit committee held four meetings during the year ended 31 December
2022. The composition of the audit committee and the attendance records
of each member at the audit committee meetings held during the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out below:

Name of committee members

EEENEK®SE

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo (chairman of the audit committee)
BRREE (FRZEEETFE)

Dr. Fung Kam Man

58 X+

Mr. Wang Zhiwei

ThHEMERE

Mr. Wong Kin Ning

HEELL

The primary function of the audit committee is to monitor the integrity of the
Company'’s financial statements, financial reports and accounts and to review
the financial and accounting policies and practices of the Group. It also makes
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditors and reviews the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems (“RM & IC Systems”) on a regular

basis.

During the year under review, the audit committee has reviewed the Group's
quarterly, interim and annual financial results, the Group’s financial reporting
system, the risk management ("RM”) & internal control (“IC") systems and the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function. It has discussed with
the management on the RM & IC systems to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have effective systems. The audit committee has also
made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of the external
auditors after reviewing the scope of work offered, taking into account their

remuneration and terms of engagement.

During the year under review, the Board did not take a different view from the
audit committee on the appointment of external auditors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has complied with
Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules that the audit committee comprises
non-executive Directors only, with a minimum of three members, at least one of
whom is an independent non-executive Director with appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise, and
that the audit committee is chaired by an independent non-executive Director
and the majority of the members are independent non-executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report 1B B TR continued #)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at the date of this report, the
nomination committee comprised four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Kin Ning (chairman of the nomination committee), Mr. Choy
Sze Chung Jojo, Dr. Fung Kam Man, and Mr. Wang Zhiwei.

The nomination committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2022. The composition of the nomination committee and the
attendance records of each member at the nomination committee meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out below:

Name of committee members

EEEREK®A

Mr. Wong Kin Ning (chairman of the nomination committee)
BRERE (BEZFEE8F/E)

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo

BRIASEE

Dr. Fung Kam Man

58RI+

Mr. Wang Zhiwei

EEHEMERE

The primary function of the nomination committee is to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and make recommendations to the Board
on suitable candidates for appointment as Directors, re-appointment or re-
designation of Directors, succession planning for Directors and assessment of
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

All appointments of Directors will ultimately be based on merit while taking
into account the measurable objectives with regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Candidate can be nominated by any Director for the
nomination committee’s consideration. Nomination committee will evaluate
the personal profile of the candidate based on the selection criteria as set out
in the nomination policy and undertake adequate due diligence in respect of
each proposed candidate. After comprehensive assessment, the nomination
committee will then make appropriate recommendations to the Board for
approval. Such criteria including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
culture and educational background, skills, professional experience, character
and integrity, knowledge, length of service and other factors that the Company
deems relevant.
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Corporate Governance Report (RS B8R E continued )

The nomination committee will review the nomination policy and the board
diversity policy on a regular basis, discuss any revision that may be required
and recommends any proposed changes to the Board for approval.

Since Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, the former Chairman, passed away on 9 March
2020, the nomination committee has been paying effort in identifying
candidates suitably qualified to fill the vacancy. As at the date of this CG
Report, the position of Chairman remained vacant. Despite such vacancy, the
nomination committee believes that with the support of experienced and
high-calibre individuals including but not limited to the executive Directors,
the balance of power and authority has been adequately maintained by the
operation of the Board as a whole.

The nomination committee considered that an appropriate balance of diversity
was maintained on the Board, which comprised members of both gender
and of different qualifications and experience. In addition, the nomination
committee also assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors as well as discussed on and reviewed the retirement and re-election

of Directors and other relevant issues.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at the date of this report, the
remuneration committee comprised four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the remuneration committee),
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo, Mr. Wang Zhiwei and Mr. Wong Kin Ning.
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The remuneration committee held five meetings during the year ended 31
December 2022. The composition of the remuneration committee and the
attendance records of each member at the remuneration committee meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out below:

Name of committee members

EEEREK®A

Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the remuneration committee)
BHRXEL (FMEZE 2L E)

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo

EEWEE

Mr. Wang Zhiwei

TEHEMERE

Mr. Wong Kin Ning

HEELAE

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure of the remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and to determine the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management, including
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, and ensure
none of the Directors or any of their associates will determine his/her own
remuneration.

The remuneration committee adopted the approach under code provision
E.1.2(c)(i) of the CG Code and is authorised to determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages as well as the terms of the service
contracts of the executive Directors and senior management of the Company.
In addition, during the year under review, it has reviewed the remuneration

policy and structure and assessed the performance of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no senior management

other than the Directors.
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CREDIT COMMITTEE

The Company had set up a credit committee in 2007 for the purpose of better
management of its credit risk and credit operations. The members of the
credit committee are responsible for, among other things, enacting marketing
strategy and issuing lending guidelines from time to time in line with the
market change, approving and overseeing the Group’s credit policy, monitoring
the performance of credit officers and the quality of the loans and providing
periodical reports to the Board for review. As at the date of this report, the
credit committee comprised four executive Directors, namely Mr. Lui Cheuk
Fung (chairman of credit committee), Ms. Ho Yuen May May, Ms. Lai Szu Yu
and Ms. Xie Si.

The credit committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December
2022. The composition of the credit committee and the attendance records of
each member at the credit committee meeting held during the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out below:

Name of committee members

EEERENE

Mr. Lui Cheuk Fung (chairman of the credit committee)
REREE (FEZE2TE)

Ms. Ho Yuen May May

fa] 458 3% 22 +

Ms. Lai Szu Yu

EEFrt

Ms. Xie Si

Eill e

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The compliance committee was established in 2010 to serve the corporate
governance function of the Company with the aim to ensure the compliance
of the Group with relevant laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Group
from time to time, in particular, the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter
163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) ("MLO"), the GEM Listing Rules and the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO"). The major duties of the compliance committee include, to develop
and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board, to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management, to
review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors and
to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report.
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Corporate Governance Report 1B B TR continued #)
As at the date of this report, the compliance committee comprised
one executive Director, namely Ms. Lai Szu Yu, and four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the
compliance committee), Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo, Mr. Wang Zhiwei and

Mr. Wong Kin Ning.

The compliance committee held four meetings during the year ended
31 December 2022. The composition of the compliance committee and the
attendance records of each member at the compliance committee meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out below:

Name of committee members
EEEREK®A

Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the compliance committee)
BHRXEL (ARZESLE)
Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo
WAL

Ms. Lai Szu Yu

BRIt

Mr. Wang Zhiwei

FHE#EEE

Mr. Wong Kin Ning

BERELL

The compliance committee regularly reviews matters regarding the compliance
of the Group with the MLO, the GEM Listing Rules, the SFO and other relevant
laws and regulations applicable to the Group. The Company has adopted
relevant compliance manuals which govern the Group's compliance matters in
relation to the MLO, the SFO, the GEM Listing Rules as well as other relevant
regulations.
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During the year under review, the compliance committee had no material
findings on the compliance issues of the Group. Meanwhile, it has recorded
the issues identified during the review and made several suggestions to the
Board and the management of the Company on issues particularly concerning
internal control, environmental, social and governance and corporate
governance. For instance, the compliance committee (i) reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional development of Directors,
senior management and other employees in respect of compliance matters
(including AML training and anti-corruption training); (ii) formulated, reviewed,
and monitored the employees’ code of conduct and compliance manual to
synchronise with the latest applicable laws and regulations and the current
practices of the Group; (iii) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure of the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance in this CG Report; and (iv) reviewed and monitored the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
Also, the Company’s internal control systems and the Company’s internal audit
function’s effectiveness are regularly reviewed by the compliance committee.
The Company has acted and would continue to act on the recommendations

of the compliance committee.

CREDIT REVIEW COMMITTEE

The credit review committee was established in 2018 for the purpose of
enhancing risk management and internal control of the Group. The major
duties of the credit review committee include: conduct periodic reviews on
different loan cases based on the credit review report and the past due loan
report prepared by the credit control department for the purpose of monitoring
credit risk. The credit review committee will give recommendations when
it deems fit. The credit review committee will also review the cases of the
approved loans to see whether such loans were approved in accordance with
the credit policy of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the credit review committee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of
the credit review committee), Mr. Wang Zhiwei and Mr. Wong Kin Ning.
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The credit review committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2022. The composition of the credit review committee and the
attendance record of each member at the credit review committee meeting
held during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out below:

Name of committee members

FEENEK®E

Dr. Fung Kam Man (chairman of the credit review committee)
BRNEL (FEERZEELE)

Mr. Wang Zhiwei

THEMERE

Mr. Wong Kin Ning

HgELAL

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements for
each financial year, which should provide a true and fair view of the Company’s
financial information. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors
have consistently selected and applied appropriate accounting policies and
standards. The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 77 to 83 of the annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Cheang Yee Wah Eva resigned as the Company Secretary of the Company
on 20 December 2022. On the same day, Mr. Wong King Sum was appointed
as the Company Secretary of the Company. He is a member of CPA Australia
and an associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute.
His primary contact person at the Company is Ms. Ho Yuen May May, an
executive Director and CEO of the Company. During the year ended 31
December 2022, he has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
trainings respectively to update his skills and knowledge.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid or payable to the external
auditors of the Company for the audit and non-audit services provided
amounted to HK$0.82 million and HK$0.43 million respectively. The non-audit
services represented the review of interim and quarterly results of the Group by
the auditors.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk management and internal control are essential elements of corporate
governance. Effective risk management and internal control facilitate the day-
to-day operation and business development of the Group while maintaining
risk at an optimal level.

SYSTEM FEATURES

The RM and IC Systems of the Company are designed to identify and monitor
risks from day-to-day operations and they are embodied by the Board through
the relevant board committees, the management, the departments and the
internal audit function.

The Board recognises its responsibilities to evaluate and determine the nature
and extent of the risks the Group is willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives of the Group, and ensures that the Company has established and
maintained appropriate and effective RM and IC Systems. The Board is also
responsible for overseeing the management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the RM and IC Systems on an ongoing basis. In this regard,
the Board conducts evaluation on the effectiveness of the RM and IC Systems
established and maintained by the management of the Company at least
annually. The review covers all relevant financial, operational and compliance
controls and reports on any failure of or deficiency in the RM and IC Systems.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the RM and
IC Systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and considered
these systems effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee The audit committee is responsible for overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system and the RM and IC Systems. It
also develops a regular platform to discuss the RM and IC Systems with the
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty to
maintain effective systems. Such discussion includes the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The audit committee
considers the major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and the
management’s response to these findings. The audit committee also regularly
reviews the findings and opinions of the internal audit function and the
management to evaluate the effectiveness of the RM and IC Systems.
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Credit Review Committee The credit review committee was established in
January 2018 for the purpose of enhancing risk management and internal control
of the Group, mainly on the aspects of credit risk. The committee has conducted
periodic reviews on issues including credit quality of various cases including cases
of newly drawn loans and overdue loans. Reviews on current loan cases are also
conducted as a continuous monitoring on credit quality. Results and findings of

the review are submitted to the Board for further discussion.

The Management and Departments The management is responsible
for designing, implementing and monitoring of the RM and IC Systems.
The management implements and takes day-to-day responsibility for the
Group's policies and manuals on risk management and internal control. For
instance, the loans department of the Group, as the daily operation units, are
responsible for reviewing and reporting potential risks from time to time to the
management.

Inside Information Handling and Dissemination The Company has also
adopted the disclosure policy and procedures to promote consistent disclosure
practices in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and the SFO. The policy
and procedure set out the mechanism of identifying the potential inside
information and escalating the matters to the Board to decide whether to
make relevant disclosure in a timely manner.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

Risk Assessment and
Measurement

B AT 4G K w T &

Risk Identification

22 B 58k B

Risk Identification The loans department and the major subsidiaries of
the Group are required to report on material risks identified in the risk
management report (on department or subsidiary level) which is submitted to
the management periodically.

Risk Assessment and Measurement The internal processes of risk assessment
and measurement involve the participation of management in assessing the
risk exposure such as identifying the impact of potential risk. The management
reviews and scrutinises the material risks and ensures that appropriate
controls and measures are in place or in progress. The management, through
consolidating, filtering and prioritising processes, compiles a risk management
report (on Company level) to the audit committee and the internal audit
function. Following review by the audit committee and the internal audit
function, the company risk management report would be submitted to the
Board.
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Risk Control and Mitigation The management considers the risks and
material internal control defects identified and recommends appropriate
measures to control and mitigate risks as well as resolve material internal
control defects. For instance, the management reviews the risk management
report (on Company level) from time to time. Such measures vary according to
the type of risks or defects and resources available.

Risk Monitoring The management, in conjunction with the audit committee,
regularly monitors the Company’s risk exposure and reviews the effectiveness
of the RM and IC Systems in terms of risk control and mitigation. For instance,
the risk management policy is subject to regular reviews in order to respond
to any significant changes to the products, services or relevant laws and
regulations that might impact the risk exposure of the Company.

DIVERSITY

An appropriate balance of diversity was maintained on the Board, which
comprised members of both gender. All appointments of Directors will take
into account the measurable objectives with regard to the benefits of diversity
on the Board to develop a pipeline of potential successors to the Board
to maintain gender diversity. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the
workforce was comprised of approximately 71% male and approximately 29%
female.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board believes that transparent and timely disclosure of the Group’s
information will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decision and to have better understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining continuing
relationship with the Company’s potential and existing investors.

The Company maintains a website at “www.fcfg.com.hk” as a communication
platform with its shareholders and investors, where the Group's business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access. Shareholders
and investors may also write directly to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at 1/F, O.T.B. Building, Nos. 259-265 Des Voeux Road
Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong or via email to enquiry@firstcredit.com.hk
for any inquiries. Inquiries will be dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.
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The Board considers that general meetings of the Company provide an
important channel for the shareholders to exchange views with the Board.
According to code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting. In the absence of the Chairman of
the Board since the decease of Mr. Li Sin Hung Maxim, an executive Director of
the Company, Mr. Lui Cheuk Fung, was appointed as the chairman of the AGM
held on 24 June 2022 and was available to answer questions at the AGM.
The chairman of each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee also endeavor to be available at the AGM to answer
any questions raised by the shareholders.

Given the above, it is believed that adequate shareholders’ communication
policy has been put in place to achieve effective communication during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

At the AGM held on 24 June 2022, a special resolution was passed to amend
the Bye Laws, details of which were set out in the Company’s circular dated
24 May 2022. The amendments to the Bye Laws took effect on 24 June 2022.
The second amended and restated Bye Laws and memorandum of continuance
of the Company are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

It is the Company’s responsibility to ensure that its shareholders’ interests are
well-protected. To do so, the Company maintains on-going dialogues with its
shareholders to communicate with them and encourage their participation
in AGM and other general meetings. Registered shareholders are notified by
post for the convening of general meetings of the Company. Notice of general
meeting contains agenda, proposed resolutions and a proxy form. All registered
shareholders are entitled to attend annual and special general meetings of
the Company, provided that their names have been recorded in the register of
members of the Company on the relevant record dates of the meetings.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, call for special
general meeting. Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings of the
Company as of the date of deposit of the requisition, shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the said date.
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Corporate Governance Report 1B B continued #)

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, (i) shareholders representing
not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders
having a right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than one hundred
shareholders, can submit a written requisition stating the resolution which is
intended to be moved at a general meeting, or to submit a statement of not
more than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any

proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights
as mentioned above to the Company's principal place of business in Hong
Kong or via email as set out in the paragraph headed “Communication with
Shareholders and Investors and Investor Relations” above.
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Biographical Details of Directors ES < E R

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Ho Yuen May May, aged 55, is an executive Director and the CEO of
the Company. She joined the Group as Chief Executive Officer in March 2020
and was appointed as an executive Director in October 2020. Ms. Ho was a
managerial staff responsible for the overall management, business strategy
and development of Asia Wealth Securities Limited, a company incorporated in
Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in 2018. Ms. Ho
graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1990 with a degree
of Bachelor of Social Science majoring in Journalism and Communications. She
has more than 10 years of experience in the securities industry with extensive
management experience, in particular experience as a responsible officer

specialised in Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under the SFO.

Ms. Lai Szu Yu, aged 34, joined the Company as an executive Director in
April 2019, and was appointed as the compliance officer of the Company in
December 2019. Ms. Lai graduated from the University of Southern California
in 2011 with a degree of Bachelor of Arts majoring in Economics. She has
different experience in financial accounting and education. She currently works
in a law firm in Hong Kong responsible for administration and accounting
matters.

Mr. Lui Cheuk Fung, aged 31, joined the Company and was appointed as
an executive Director in April 2021, he is also the chairman of the Credit
Committee of the Company. He was the portfolio manager of Masan Capital
and responsible for the research activities and investment decision of the
fund in 2020. Mr. Lui was a responsible officer to carry out type 4 (advising
on securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activity under the
SFO. Mr. Lui has over 5 years of experience in the asset management industry
with solid experience in buy-side research and portfolio management. Before
joining Masan Capital, Mr. Lui had worked as an analyst at various financial
institutions. Mr. Lui started his career at BOCI-Prudential Asset Management
Limited in 2015 and served as analyst at BlackRock Inc and private equity
associate at Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited. Mr. Lui obtained his Bachelor
of Business Administration from The University of Bath in the UK in 2015.

Ms. Xie Si, aged 34, joined the Company as an executive Director in
September 2017. Ms. Xie is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company.
Ms. Xie is responsible for supervising the overall operation and management,
formulating market strategies and ensuring the loan quality of the Group.
Ms. Xie graduated from Southwest University of Science and Technology with
a bachelor’s degree in accountancy. Ms. Xie has over 11 years of experience
in banking and financial industry. She has extensive experiences in providing
financial services to the customers, including corporate and individual clients.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo, aged 63, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in November 2017. Mr. Choy obtained a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of Wales, Newport in
2004 and a Master of Business Law degree from the Monash University in
2007. Mr. Choy was awarded Fellowship by Canadian Chartered Institute of
Business Administration and Honorary Doctorate of Management by Lincoln
University in 2019. Mr. Choy is a fellow member of each of the Institute of
Financial Accountants, the Institute of Public Accountants, The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and the Institute of Compliance Officers. Mr. Choy has
extensive experience in the securities industry and has worked as a responsible
officer and representative in various securities companies in Hong Kong. He
is currently the vice chairman and a responsible officer of National Resources
Securities Limited for Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on
securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the SFO
and also the permanent honorable president and the vice chairman of the
Institute of Securities Dealers Limited. Mr. Choy is currently an independent
non-executive director of Luye Pharma Group Limited (stock code: 2186), New
Sparkle Roll International Group Limited (stock code: 0970) and Zhaojin Mining
Industry Company Limited (stock code: 1818), all being limited companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Fung Kam Man, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in July 2016. Dr. Fung has obtained a Bachelor's degree in Business
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a degree of Master
of Science in Financial Management from the University of London and a
degree of Doctor of Philosophy awarded by the University of Nottingham. Dr.
Fung has been certified as a Project Management Professional by the Project
Management Institute. He is a certified financial planner certified by the
Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong and a certified financial planner of
The Chinese Institute of Certified Financial Planners. Dr. Fung has experience of
more than 30 years in the continuing education and vocational training field.
Dr. Fung is currently a self-employed higher education development and quality
assurance consultant.
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Biographical Details of Directors 552 F& FE (continued )

Mr. Li Long, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in September 2017. Mr. Li has over 29 years of experience in the
trading industry. Mr. Li has held managerial positions in various sizeable
corporations in the PRC from 1985 to 2013. He has mainly been responsible
for business development, marketing and financial management.

Mr. Wang Zhiwei, aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in October 2016. Mr. Wang graduated from Taiyuan Institute of
Machinery (currently known as the North University of China) in 1990 with a
bachelor's degree in mechanical engineering. Mr. Wang has been qualified as
a senior engineer in electronic engineering in the PRC since December 2000.
Mr. Wang has over 18 years of experience in holding senior executive positions
in various corporations in the PRC with businesses involving e-commerce,
software development, coal and energy development and solar power. Mr.
Wang was an independent non-executive director of Interactive Entertainment
China Cultural Technology Investments Limited (currently known as “Hang
Tai Yue Group Holdings Limited”) (stock code: 08081), the shares of which
are listed on GEM, from 1 August 2016 to 13 August 2018. From January
2011 to April 2014, Mr. Wang was the vice president of a subsidiary of Jun
Yang Financial Holdings Limited (currently known as “Power Financial Group
Limited”) (stock code: 00397), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. From May 2014 to June 2016, Mr. Wang also
worked as the deputy general manager of China Demeter Investments Limited
(currently known as “China Demeter Financial Investments Limited”) (stock
code: 08120), the shares of which are listed on GEM, and participated in
seeking potential investment opportunities in different projects.

Mr. Wong Kin Ning, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in April 2021, Mr. Wong has over 21 years of management
experience in the electronic and mechanical engineering field. Mr. Wong is
currently holding a management position in a sizable company in Hong Kong.
He is mainly responsible for strategic planning, as well as project and operation
management.
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Directors’ Report EEE RS

The Board is pleased to present this directors’ report (“Directors’ Report”)
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022. All cross-references mentioned in this Directors’
Report form part of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in money lending business in Hong Kong
through the provision of both secured and unsecured loans to its customers,
including individuals, corporations and foreign domestic workers. Details of the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the consolidated

financial statements.
RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2022 are set out
in the consolidated financial statements from pages 84 to 159 of this annual
report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board did not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The dividend policy aims at
enhancing transparency of the Company and facilitating the shareholders and
investors of the Company to make informed investment decisions relating to
the Company. As set out in the dividend policy, the payment and the amount
of any dividend depends on a number of factors, including but not limited to
the Group's financial performance and liquidity position, the general economic
conditions and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the Group.
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Directors’ Report E8 2 RS

(continued &)

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2022, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance
indicators, and an indication of likely future developments of the Group’s
business is provided in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” from pages 6 to 18 of this annual report. Description of matters that
are material for appreciation of the state of the Group's affairs can be found
throughout this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s business operations and financial conditions may be affected by
risks and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s businesses, which mainly
include the operational risks, financial risks, market risks and regulatory risks.

Operational risks are those relating to the Group's internal processes, including
but not limited to potential misconduct of employees and fraud, which
may bring significant adverse impact on the Group’s business operations
and reputation. Failures of information technology systems will result in
interruption of the loan operation of the Group and potential leakage of
confidential information. Operational risks may also result from emergencies
and unexpected events such as natural hazards. In view of such risks, relevant
operation policies and procedures have been adopted and are in place to
ensure that the daily operation of the Group is in compliance with the relevant
requirements of laws and regulations, such as the MLO and the SFO. Internal
reporting procedures have been established and when any suspected case
of employee misconduct and/or fraud arises, any staff can report directly
to the management. The staff handbook has also stipulated that employee
misconduct and fraud are prohibited. The Group places considerable value
on data security and data privacy. The computer systems are secured with
access controls, while maintenance and update are conducted regularly by
the information technology service providers. Anti-virus softwares have been
installed for all computers in the office of the Group.
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Directors’ Report B 2R &

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont'd)

Financial risks include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk in the
Group's normal course of business. Interest rate risk relates to the fluctuation
of interest rates of the interest-bearing lending and borrowing of the Group.
Credit risk relates to the ability or willingness of customers to meet their
contractual obligations whereas liquidity risk refers to the Group's ability in
maintaining sufficient fund to meet the liquidity requirements. The above
financial risks may affect the finance costs incurred, revenue generated as well
as impairment loss on loans receivables. Further discussion about the financial
risks is set out in section C of note 28 to the consolidated financial statements
from pages 146 to 155 of this annual report. For credit risk in respect of the
loan portfolio, the Group has developed and adopted a set of loan approval
procedures and credit policy. The Group strives to maintain sufficient cash and
adequate funding available from its shareholders and committed line(s) of
funding from financial institution(s) and other entities. To ensure the Group
maintains sufficient capital and credit lines to meet its liquidity requirements,
the cash flows projection of the Group is reviewed on a regular basis.

Market risks relate to the change in macroeconomic conditions and fluctuation
of market variables such as gross domestic product, exchange rates, equity
prices and property prices in Hong Kong. These risks may generally affect
market demands and the repayment abilities of customers, in particular the
customers of personal loans, corporate loans and mortgage loans, which may
lead to adverse impact on the Group's revenue. The Group will from time to
time fine-tune the Group’s business strategies, policies and procedures, in
particular the loan approval procedures, according to the market situation.

Regulatory risks may arise from potential default of the Group in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group's business and any future changes in the relevant laws and regulations.
Non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations may bring various
consequences to the Group, including but not limited to the revocation or
suspension of the money lenders licence and/or the imposition of penalties
on the Group resulting from the offence. The compliance committee of the
Company was established with the aim to ensure the strict compliance of the
Group with relevant laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Group. The
Company has also adopted a compliance manual which governs the Company's
compliance matters in relation to the MLO, SFO, the GEM Listing Rules as
well as other relevant regulations. More information about the compliance
committee of the Company is set out in the paragraph headed "“Compliance

Committee” in the CG Report from pages 29 to 31 of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report B Z I continued &)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont'd)

Further discussion on the risk management and internal control of the
Company is set out in the section headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control” in the CG Report from pages 33 to 35 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is aware of its rising environmental responsibility to the community
and is committed to reducing the negative impacts on the environment caused
by the operation of its business and enhancing its influence among different
stakeholders. It also strives to maintain an environmental-friendly business

mechanism across its operation.

The Group treasures natural resources and encourages efficient use of
electricity, water and paper. Environmental-friendly workplace guidelines
are provided to employees to facilitate the creation of a green workplace.
Employees are encouraged to use both sides of paper, recycled paper, or
choosing “2 pages per sheet” printing mode when printing documents. Also,
the Group nurtures recycling habit of employees and over 4,271 kg of used
paper were recycled during the year under review. The Group also initiates to
reduce waste on festive occasions. For instance, it provided “Green Christmas
Tips” to staff for reducing packaging waste resulting from Christmas presents.

Further details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance are set
out in the section headed "Environmental Sustainable Development” in the
environmental, social and governance report (“ESG Report”) from pages 60 to
66 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The operations of the Group are based in Hong Kong and the Group itself is
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. In light of this, the Group upholds high
corporate governance standards and strives to ensure that its business practice
complies with all relevant laws and regulations in the jurisdiction. Reviews on
regulatory compliance of its business operation are conducted from time to
time. During the year under review and up to the date of this annual report,
the Group has been in compliance in all material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its money lending
business in Hong Kong which mainly include the GEM Listing Rules, the MLO
as well as the SFO.
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Directors’ Report ESBE I (continued #)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS (Cont'd)

The MLO provides for the control and regulation of money lenders and money
lending transactions, the licensing of persons carrying on business as money
lenders, and provides protection and relief against excessive interest rates
and extortionate stipulations in respect of loans. As a licenced money lender
in Hong Kong, the Group has to ensure strict compliance with the MLO. The
Group's money lending business is subject to licensing requirements. The
money lenders licence is granted by the licensing court and is renewable
annually subject to satisfaction of all licensing conditions. Any non-compliance
with the MLO and/or the licensing conditions may result in revocation or
suspension of the money lenders licence, imposition of fines and hindrance
for future renewal of the money lenders licence, which may have an adverse
impact on the Group’s money lending business.

For the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, there has been
no material breach or non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
which have a material impact on the business and operations of the Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS
Employees

The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt. The
Group strives to enhance employees’ loyalty and sense of belongings to the
Group through various policies and practice. It emphasises the importance
of labour diversity and equal opportunities in recruitment process. It also
provides staff with a caring, safe and healthy working environment. In order
to help cater for the continuous development of the employees, professional
trainings and self-development sponsorships are provided. The Group values
any feedback from employees and maintains open communication with them,
which contributes to a good and long-lasting relationship.

Further details about the Group's policies and relationship with its employees
are set out in the sub-section headed “Employment and Labour Practices”
under the section headed “Social Sustainable Development” in the ESG Report
from page 66 to 76 of this annual report.

customers

Customer-oriented principle is adopted across the business operation of the
Group. Product mix (e.g. loan portfolio) and service quality are regarded as key
to good relationship with customers and are reviewed from time to time with
the aim to cater for target customers’ fast-changing needs and enhance their
satisfaction with the products and services of the Group. The Group also strives
to ensure that honest and comprehensive information about its products is
provided to customers so that they can make appropriate informed decision. In
addition, as a large amount of personal and confidential information is handled
and processed by staff in day-to-day operation, guidelines regarding security of
customers’ personal data privacy and avoidance of information leakage are in
place.
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Directors’ Report B Z I continued &)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

KEY RELATIONSHIPS (Cont’'d)
Ccustomers (Cont’d)

During the year under review, the Group’s major customers sourced from the
money lending business. With a diversified customer base, the Group did not
rely on any of its major customers. During the year under review, the revenue
generated from the five largest customers of the Group in aggregate accounted
for less than 20% of the revenue generated from the money lending business
of the Group. The five largest customers were related to the Group's money
lending business and comprised four individuals and one corporation, all of
which were third parties independent with the Company and its connected
persons. All of the five largest customers had outstanding loan balances with
the Group as at 31 December 2022.

During the year under review, the credit period of the loans granted to the
major customers was 2 years, which was negotiated on an arm’s length basis
with reference to the commercial practice and the Group's credit policy. The
management of the Group will closely monitor the loan portfolio, in particular
the loans to major customers, periodically and will continue to adopt risk
control and management strategies while broadening the customer base.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors, their close associates
nor any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
the five largest customers of the Group during the year under review.

Further details about the Group’s policies and relationship with its customers
are set out in the paragraphs headed “Products and Services Responsibility”
and “Data Privacy” under the sub-section headed "“Operating Practices” in the
ESG Report from pages 71 to 72 of this annual report.

Suppliers

Given that the Group is engaged in the finance industry which is office based,
it does not rely on any major suppliers for its business operation in general. The
Group's suppliers are mainly those who provide services supporting the daily office
operation of the Group such as cleaning service companies, office consumables
suppliers and so on. The Group therefore considers that the risk arising from
cooperation with suppliers is minimal, and is unlikely that the relationships with
these suppliers will bring significant impact on the business operation of the Group
as it is comparatively easy to seek alternative suppliers in the market.

Besides, guidelines were established and adopted to outline criteria to be
considered when selecting suppliers and vendors. Factors such as whether the
potential suppliers own shared values with the Group in terms of sustainable
development will be considered. During the year under review, the Group has
worked closely with its suppliers and maintained good relationship with them.
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Directors’ Report ESBE I (continued #)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

KEY RELATIONSHIPS (Cont'd)
Suppliers (Cont’d)

Further details about the Group’s policies and relationship with its suppliers are
set out in the paragraphs headed “Supply Chain Management” under the sub-
section headed “Operating Practices” in the ESG Report on pages 70 to 71 of
this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
year under review and the past four years is set out in the section headed
“Financial Summary” on page 160 of this annual report. The summary does
not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year under
review are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2022 or subsisted at the end of the year under review.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has issued any shares or
debentures during the year under review.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the laws
in Bermuda which the Company would be obliged to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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Directors’ Report B &R continued i)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during
the year under review are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group for the year under review
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 87 of
this annual report.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company for the year under review
are set out in section B of note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to equity holders comprised the contributed surplus which amounted to
approximately HK$213.46 million (2021: HK$213.46 million).

DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and other
donations and sponsorships amounting to approximately HK$19,800 (2021:
approximately HK$19,300).

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Directors during the year under review were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Ho Yuen May May
Ms. Lai Szu Yu

Mr. Lui Cheuk Fung
Ms. Xie Si

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Choy Sze Chung Jojo
Dr. Fung Kam Man

Mr. Li Long

Mr. Wang Zhiwei

Mr. Wong Kin Ning

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at 31 December 2022, the Company had no senior management other than
the Directors.

Biographical information of the Directors are set out from pages 38 to 40 of
this annual report.
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Directors’ Report ESBE I (continued #)

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive Directors to

be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the existing executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for a term of no more than three years and each of the
existing independent non-executive Directors was appointed for a term of two
years, all being subject to retirement, re-election and removal in accordance
with the Bye-laws.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Company within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the Company's
remuneration policy and structure of the remuneration of all Directors and
senior management. The Company offers competitive remuneration packages
and constantly monitors the packages with reference to the Company’s
conditions and market situations. The remuneration package generally
includes fees or salaries, discretionary bonus, allowance and benefits and
so on. Emoluments payable to Directors are generally determined based
on the Group's operating results, individual performance and experience
of the Directors and comparable market practices. Details of the Directors’
emoluments are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company did not have a share option scheme as at 31 December 2022.
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Directors’ Report B Z I continued &)

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the five individuals with highest emoluments are
set out in section B of note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year under review, none of the Directors and their respective close
associates had any business or interests in business which competes or may
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group or had
any other conflicts of interest with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No arrangement to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries is a party,
and whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate was subsisted at the end of the year
under review or at any time during the year under review.

Also, no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
(including any person who at any time during the year under review was a
Director) or an entity connected with a Director had material interest (whether
directly or indirectly), was subsisted at the end of the year under review or at
any time during the year under review.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty. Such provisions were in force during the year
under review and remained in force as at the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year under review, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or subsisted.
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors and the chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by Directors as
referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Position:
Name Nature of interest
31 M

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Xiao Guoliang

HER

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other person (other
than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who/which had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as
at 31 December 2022.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company had not entered into
any connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which was
subject to reporting and annual review requirements under the GEM Listing

Rules.

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group are set
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements and those related
party transactions did not constitute “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as the case may be) under Chapter 20 of the GEM

Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining statutory and
regulatory standard of corporate governance and strives to ensure that its
business practice complies with the relevant laws and regulations in the
jurisdiction. The Group is responsive to regulatory changes and will evaluate
the need to amend its existing policies and practice from time to time. Details
of the Group's corporate governance structure and practices are set out in the
CG Report from pages 19 to 37 of the annual report of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report E &R 5 (continued i)

AUDITORS

The Audited Financial Statements have been audited by Elite Partners CPA
Limited (“Elite Partners”).

During the year under review, Elite Partners was re-appointed as the auditors
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 by the shareholders at
the AGM held on 24 June 2022. Elite Partners will retire and, being eligible,
offer itself for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution to re-
appoint Elite Partners and to authorize the Directors to fix its remuneration will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lui Cheuk Fung
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2023
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Pursuant to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide ("ESG
Guide”) set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased
to present this Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report for the
year ended 31 December 2022. This ESG Report highlights the initiatives and
efforts of the Company and the entity which is key to the operation of the
i.e. First Credit Limited,
environmental sustainable development and social sustainable development in

Group in terms of revenue, in the commitment to

the course of their principal business of money lending.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Group adopts the principle of materiality in the ESG reporting by
conducting stakeholder engagement on a regular basis to understand the key
ESG issues that are important to the business of the Group. For the sake of
materiality principle stated in the ESG Guide, aspects and issues that are not
relevant or material to the Group are excluded from this ESG Report. All the
key ESG issues and key performance indicators (“KPIs”) are reported in the
ESG Report according to recommendations of the ESG Guide. The Group has
complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG Guide for
the year ended 31 December 2022. Please refer to the section of “Stakeholder
Engagement and Materiality Assessment” for detailed information of the
process adopted for selection of material ESG factors and the stakeholder

engagement.

In preparation of relevant specific KPIs, quantitative approach is adopted
for the information in the ESG Report of the Group. Sufficient description
or reference to the standards adopted have been disclosed under relevant
sections of the ESG Report. KPIs that need to be revealed compulsorily as
required by the "ESG Reporting Guide” were all addressed in the sections
headed "Environmental Sustainable Development” and “Social Sustainable
Development” of this report. Apart from complying with the reporting
“ESG Reporting Guide”,

on our compliance with relevant laws and regulations. This document is

principles of the this report has made illustrations
prepared in both English and Chinese versions and have been uploaded onto
the Company’s website at http://www.fcfg.com.hk and the Stock Exchange’s
website at http://www.hkexnews.hk.

Where feasible, the Group makes records and estimates for quantitative
information. To ensure a comprehensive understanding of the Group’s
sustainability performance, the environmental performance relative to various
quantitative KPIs with comparison to 2021 figures, are disclosed in each
corresponding section. Information on the standards, methodologies and/or

calculation references are stated wherever appropriate.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report B8 Tt S K &6

The Group uses its best endeavours to ensure consistency in the use of
methods or KPIs in achieving a meaningful comparison. There is no change to
the methods or KPIs used in this ESG Report as compared with those of the
previous year.

REPORTING SCOPE

This ESG Report primarily focuses on the sustainability performance of the
Group's business activities in Hong Kong, which involve one office in Sheung
Wan and one warehouse in Kwun Tong as they represent the principal
operations of the Group's business activities in Hong Kong. With the aim of
augmenting the accuracy and transparency of the disclosure in this ESG Report,
the environmental and social KPIs collected and disclosed in this ESG Report
reflect all operations in Hong Kong, unless stated otherwise.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group conducts stakeholder engagement for evaluation of the materiality
and importance in ESG.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from the
stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the Group’s business
activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders that are important to its
business and established various channels for communication with them. The
following table provides an overview of the Group’s key stakeholders including
government and regulatory authorities, shareholders and investors, professional
parties, senior management and Board of Directors, employees, customers,
suppliers and non-governmental organizations, media and communities and
the various platforms and methods of communication used to contact with,
listen and respond to the key stakeholders.
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Stakeholder Category
Fein EEH A

Expectations and Concerns

HEMEE

St
=

BE/0F

S

continued &)

Methods of Communication

BEHN

Government and regulatory o Compliance operation o Rules and guidelines published by
authorities ° Risk management regulatory authorities, including the
o Payment of tax Stock Exchange and the SFC
o Anti-corruption o Reports of suspicious activities to
° Anti-money laundering Joint Financial Intelligence Unit (if
applicable)
T B BB e . EREE . B EE SR RER MY
. [=\fg & 12 A K 45 5l
. S EIE TR . S M EBERA (HER) RS
. k&S COEED
o FTEEE
Shareholders and investors o Compliance operation o Annual general meeting
o Risk management o Announcements and circulars
° Business performance o Financial reports
o Email or mail
BRRIEEH o EREE J BERBERE
o [\ B & 32 o NE KB
. REXRR J MIERE
. TIPSR EL
Professional parties o Compliance operation o Meetings
° Anti-corruption ° Seminars
o Risk management . Email or mail
HEAL . BREE . G
o R&EB . a5 FE
o [B\ % B B2 . BRI
Senior management and Board of ° Compliance operation o Regular management meetings
Directors ° Risk management o Board and Board committee meetings
o Products and services quality o Financial reports
EREBRERESS . BREE J THEBRESH
. [2\fz & I J BEEgREFLZECEE
. EmkREEE . M HE
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Stakeholder Category Expectations and Concerns Methods of Communication
RHirEER B2 R BEAN
Employees o Health and safety o Regular meetings and management
o Employee development and training communication
o Data privacy o Job performance evaluation
o Products and service quality o Email
° Compliance operation
B8 . fEREZ S . THEZERERERR
. & B 3R RIET . THERBFIA
. AHRE . B
. EmkREES
. BREE
Customers . Products and service quality o Service hotline
° Data privacy o Email or mail
TP o EmkREES . R TG BAR
o BRALE . BE SR EL
Suppliers o Fair and open procurement o Service hotline
. Email or mail
e o NS SUNEEPS: . ARTG 2VAR
. B REL
Non-governmental organizations, ° Community service o ESG reports
media and communities ° Community investment projects
o Charity
JEMAE A - R Rt [: . 1 AR 7% . RE e RERME
. HRIREIER
. BE

The Group has always been committed to maintaining a strong relationship
with its stakeholders, working towards the goal of sustainable development.
Stakeholder engagement is a key part of management’s strategy to manage
and report on issues that are most relevant to the stakeholders and the Group's
business.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG aspects
through the following steps:

1. Identification: Benchmark the disclosure common practices on ESG topics
of companies in the money lending industry, 14 highly relevant topics
have been identified.

2. Assessment: Combining the analysis of peer benchmarking and
stakeholder survey, a list of ESG issues of varying materiality levels was
consolidated.

3. Review: Results of the materiality survey were analysed and presented as
a materiality matrix. Stakeholders’ concerns were reviewed and discussed
by the management, and the identified material topics are disclosed in
this ESG Report.
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The following matrix is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues:

LEVEL OF INFLUENCE ON STAKEHOLDERS' ASSESSMENT AND DECISIONS

High &

BeE:

2022 Materiality Matrix
TEICFEEMER

Anti-corruption
RES

Compliance with laws
and regulations

/—0

B EERER
ﬁ EmploynEr% %}éortunities Products and
! = Services Quality
g‘ Caring Workplace [ ERRRHHEE
® BN TS
S
> Supply Chain Management
a HAEEEE
B Professional Development
pia HERE
Q? Waste Management
* Community /. EENER
st Use of Resources
Emission Control HREA
23z e2xil

.\ Climate Change Mitigation
and Adaptation
RERERRIZZ(

Data Privacy
ERALE

UTEEAAEESERE HEREREFEDN

?

Corporate
Governance
©EER

Low {&

LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE OF ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS

BERMEVENEREAT

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE E38%4#

High &

Key Subsidiaries/
Departments

EZMBA R, FBFI

AR R IS5 AR BRI EEET
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The Board has a critical role in overseeing the ESG-related issues by exercising
its risk-related oversight after taking into account the materiality of different
ESG risks. This oversight is strategic and closely aligned with the Group’s
business model and operations.

For the year under review, the Board effectively oversees risks posed by ESG
issues throughout the risk evaluation, prioritization and management processes.
The Board evaluates and determines the nature and extent of the ESG-related
risks that are relevant and material in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives
based on the results/findings of the materiality assessment. Various measures
and policies have been established and implemented to manage and monitor
the risks related to the ESG matters. The Board oversees the implementation
of the ESG measures and monitors the ESG-related issues through the risk
management system during the annual review.

An ESG workforce was established to introduce and facilitate implementation
of ESG-related policies and measures. It ensures that employees are
well-informed of any introductions of or amendments to the ESG-related
policies and measures. It also takes the major role of monitoring the ESG
performance and ensuring the effective implementation of the ESG-related

policies and measures.

Annual review is conducted regarding the ESG commitment and performance
of the Group based on the relevant external and internal information
gathered. Based on the findings in its annual review, the ESG workforce
makes recommendations and suggestions to the compliance committee of
the Board, which conducts review and reports findings and suggestions to the
Board correspondingly. The Board then conducts overall review with the aim to
enhance ESG mechanism and policies of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

EMISSIONS CONTROL

The Group understands the importance of environmental protection and is
committed to minimising air pollutant and greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission
as it knows that the global warming issue should never be overlooked.

For calculating GHG emissions, SME Carbon Audit Toolkit (“Toolkit"), designed
by the University of Hong Kong and City University of Hong Kong, is used by
the Group. Considering the scale of the Group’s business, the emission factors
of the Toolkit are considered suitable and are adopted in calculating the GHG
emissions of the Group that are disclosed in this ESG Report. Even though
the Toolkit was established in 2010, the Group considers that the potential
inaccuracies due to time factor will only have a minor influence on the results.
Apart from the Toolkit, other external resources obtained from relevant
institutions such as CLP Power Hong Kong Limited (“CLP"”) and Hong Kong
Electric Company Limited (“HK Electric”) and those extracted from the IPCC
Fifth Assessment Report 2015 (AR5) are also adopted in calculating the GHG
emissions of the Group. Considering the business nature of the Group, GHG
emissions stated in this ESG Report in relation to the respective consumption
by the key subsidiaries and offices were calculated in the unit of kilogram of
carbon dioxide in equivalent (kg CO; eqg-"), or in kilogram (“kg").

The Group’s principal business was money lending. The cause of direct
emissions in the Group's operation was mainly from the use of vehicles and
vessel which run on petrol and diesel. The decrease in air pollutant emission
was attributable to the decrease in the usage of motor vehicles for business
purposes.

The approximate amount of direct emission from the Group was as follows:

REARFERRE

e

REEBFRARRZEZM -AEER REREL
F‘:‘EJM EIILJ%E/ .ﬁﬁﬁ(jﬂﬁd\m‘ /‘55&%&/511::
mE([RERB]BR-
HHAERBERETE ASERBEEKRE

REBWTABRR R/ M eERES TAM ([T
BE -ZRINAEEEBRE TABENHER
BEHEBERESE TRRAARFERNEERR A
RE HEREAMETRENRERERE-
HATAMR -_FT—FFEL EAKRER B
ﬁaﬁ%%i&ﬁ’ﬁ%&%ﬁ%ﬂ%iﬁﬁ*%Fiﬂﬁ%%°
BRTAMN BHBERE (WPEENERA
(F‘FEJ)&?%%E&%B&Aﬂ(FE%%ﬁJ)E
BHEMIIHEREFHEE — T - HAFIPCCER
REFE RS (AR E R MR A AR EALE
ErREREBFRE - ZEIAEENERLE
ARFE HERERRETINRAEREZMNEAR
ARBAEMEERELNBEREIERE D
RAF—EtiEs ([AFRZERER]) A
AT (AR RERFHE-

REFBFEXBEANE - TLEBIERERZIN
MRBREBEREADAME BN RENMH - =R

BARMFERER D RANEEBEERRD A
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Nitrogen oxides (“NO") ALty ([NOLI)
Sulphur oxides (“SO") WmE b (150« 1)
Particulate matter (“PM") g ([PM )

Apart from direct emissions, the Group’s operation also leads to energy indirect
emissions of GHG caused by the use of electricity, such as lighting and air-
conditioning system, and other indirect emissions of GHG caused by waste
disposal, water consumption and public transportation of staff.
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GHG EMISSIONS BEREHEM

The approximate amount of GHG emissions from the Group was as follows: TERAAEENREREHMMTE

Greenhouse gas emissions BERBHR 1

Scope 1 emission BEHER kg CO; eq- 31,391
AFZEREE

Scope 2 emission EEDHER 2 kg CO; eg- 24,781
AFZEIREE

Scope 3 emission HE3HR 3 kg CO; eq- -
AFZEfHEE

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1+2+3) BERBHREE (BE1+2+43) 4 kg €O, eg- 56,172
AR-EILHEE

Intensity (Scope 1+2+3) ZE (#E1+2+3) kg CO, eq-/sq.feet 9.48
AFZENBEE/THR

Public Transportation of staff EIRARETBIE kg CO; eq- 303
AT ZEftREE

Total non-hazardous waste produced ~ FiE4BEBEENAE

General Waste (Disposed) —-REEM(ERE) 5

- Total -8 kg CO; eg- 1,770
AT ZEftREE

- Intensity -BE kg CO; eq-/sq.feet 030

R -ELBER/TAR

Note 1: GHG included combustion of fuels controlled by the Group, carbon dioxide, — FMzE1 @ JBEREBRIEANEBESI O REREEEHRE

methane and nitrous oxide etc. For easy understanding, the amount of GHG —ati Tk —RE_RE - RENERE.
emissions stated in this table was calculated in the unit of kg CO, eg-produced. AERFMEAEREHNENEEERT AL
The global warming potential values for methane and nitrous oxide were 28 and MEEBRBEMETHE - FEER-—AL-ANE
265 respectively. TREEE B B R28%265 °

F-ERAEAESEARAF —B-_FFH
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Note 2: Energy indirect emissions by the Group were mainly from electricity consumption.
The latest emission factor of CLP was extracted from the CLP's sustainable report
of 2022, and the latest emission factor of HK Electric was extracted from the
carbon calculator of HK Electric in calculating the data of 2022. The emission
factors were 0.55 kg CO, per unit for the electricity supplied by CLP and 0.71 kg
CO; per unit for electricity supplied by HK Electric.

Note 3: The Toolkit was used to calculate the data of other indirect emissions of GHG by
the Group.

Note 4: The Total GHG emissions of the Group, had decreased by approximately 4%
compared with last year, which was mainly attributable to the decrease in the
usage of motor vehicles for business purposes.

Note 5: Non-hazardous waste disposal of the Group mainly comprised general office
waste. Owing to practical reasons, the data of non-hazardous waste disposal
was estimated figures. The data of 2021 and 2022 was estimated by taking a
daily average volume of non-hazardous waste disposal as a sample. The total
non-hazardous waste disposal, was significantly decreased from approximately
1,770 kg CO, eqg-for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately 270
kg CO; eg-during the year. The intensity of non-hazardous waste generated
by the Group decreased from approximately 0.30 kg/sq. ft. for the year 2021
to approximately 0.05 kg/sq. ft. for the year 2022 due to absence of waste

generated from relocation of office in year 2022 when compared to year 2021.

During the year under review, the total GHG emissions had decreased by
approximately 2% as compared to the corresponding period in 2021. Moving
forward, business growth may inevitably generate direct emissions, due to
the increase of business activities and usage of relatively more resources. In
order to strike a balance between business growth and the control of direct
emissions, the Group target to maintain and control the increment of petrol
and electricity consumption by 10% and 5% respectively in the coming year.
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The emission reduction measures were as follows:

o encourage employees to turn off the engine when the vehicle is not in
use;
J remind employees to plan routes ahead of time to reduce route

repetition and optimize fuel consumption;

o arrange regular maintenance service to the vehicles to ensure optimal
engine performance and fuel use;

o actively adopt energy conservation measures which are described in the
section headed "“Use of Resources” below;

o avoid peak hour traffic; and

o encourage staff to use public transport instead of private vehicle.

WASTE DISPOSAL AND RECYCLING

As the principal business of the Group was office-based, no hazardous
waste as defined in the “Basel Convention on the Control of Transboundary
Movements of Hazardous Wastes and their Disposal, 1989" was produced
during the year under review. The Group implemented policies to enhance
employees’ awareness of waste separation and recycling relevant waste. For
the year ended 31 December 2022, the weight of used paper collected for

recycling was 4,271 kg.

In the future, the Group will continue its efforts to handle non-hazardous
waste with the aim of maintaining or reducing the total generation of such
waste. Actions to reduce wastes are as follows:

o encourage the use of electronic scanning or electronic fax to reduce
photocopying;
o introduce collection and recycling of e-waste such as old computers or

other office equipment; and

o Re-use office consumables such as printing paper and manila envelopes.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group treasures natural resources as a gift from nature, and it encourages
efficient use of resources to avoid over-consumption. Employees are
encouraged to turn off lights and electronic appliances that are not in use after
business hours. Reminder tags are placed in the office to remind employees to
adjust thermostats at a reasonable room temperature. Office consumables such
as light bulbs and stationery are replaced or purchased only when necessary in

order to avoid wastage.
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The Group's business is office-based, and it merely involves regular daily water
consumption and discharge. No issue arises in sourcing water that is fit for
the purpose of the Group’s operation as the water supply is managed by the
building management office. Employees are reminded to turn off the water
faucet when it is not in use. Reminder tags of water conservation are placed
at a conspicuous position near the sinks to remind employees to save water.
Besides, in order to promote the habit of conservation of natural resources,
reminder tags are placed in the office’s washrooms to encourage the staff to
conserve toilet paper and tissues.

As the Group is not engaged in the manufacturing business, its operation does
not involve the use of packaging materials and labelling.

The volume and the intensity of energy and water consumption by the Group
during the year under review, together with the comparative figures for the
year ended 31 December 2021 were as follows. Given that the principal
business of the Group was office-based, sq. ft. is used as the unit in calculating

the intensity of electricity and water consumption:

AEBNEBRBAZTET LR FRAFERAK
Ko B R o AR S B R SRBRGE B Y 258 WY KR 70 H 3E
EEAME ARAKEERDIHAEEEREE K
SEIRIEEE L AKEER G E BN - 7K
UL E R T IRA REKERNRERHIALR
BREMAOMK LI BREEEARERNE
B RAEATHERARERE ZBE TN
MR

HRAEBET I RFEEER WEEETHIR
BEMBEBEHROER -

AEEROEFEANKERFEKENTE &
A#BE-ZF-_—F+_A=1t—HLEFEOLER
HFNMT - ERAEEN T EZEBENDEHET
Btk 77 RAZ AT EFEE MK E R B AL

2022
Unit  Unit/sq. feet
FSEAIR
HE
Direct energy - Petrol BEER— M
(kilowatt-hour ("kWh") ("000F FL /)N B
in '000s) ([FRE])) 1 70,091 11.83 76,309 12.87
Indirect energy — Electricity BEIR-8 71
(KWh in "000s) ('000F FLFF ) 35,072 6.00 34,903 5.89
Water Consumption N 2 N/A A N/A 738
Total: st 105,163 17.74 111,212 18.76
Note 1: The relevant conversion factors are referenced from the International Energy  [ffsF1 : MHEAEBREEHH2EHBERE SIS -
Agency.
Note 2: Since the Group operates in leased office premises, the data of its water  [fs2: ARNAEBEEMAENRAZTNLEL HAEEE

consumption was not available to the Group.

In the following year, the Group is committed to initiating further measures
addressing energy consumption, with the aim to maintain or reduce the
intensity of energy consumption. The respective measures are as follows:
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Electricity

o replace broken electronic devices and electric appliances with new
models having energy efficiency label;

o regularly clean lamps or light bulbs to ensure luminous efficiency and
effective illumination;

o keep doors, windows, and entrances closed to prevent loss of air
conditioning in the office;

o assure the cooling effect of air conditioning equipment by proper
maintenance;

. keep air-conditioning at 25C;
o promoting the use of energy-saving lighting system such as LED; and
o remind employees to turn off the office electronic appliances before get

off from work.

Petrol

The Group's use of petrol was mainly attributable to our vehicles and use
of diesel was mainly to our vessel, and we allocated the use of high-grade
petrol and diesel to reduce the impact on the environment. Meanwhile, we
encourage employee to use public transportation as much as possible to
reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND NATURAL RESOURCES

Being a financial institution, most of the Group’s business operations involve
document printing. No significant impacts are made on the environment
and natural resources resulting from the Group's operation except from the
printing of loan documents and internal documents, which can result in the
consumption of a large amount of printing papers. The Group takes the
following steps to minimise the use of paper:

o promoting the use of double-sided printing and recycling non-
confidential used paper;

o reminder tags are placed in office to encourage employees to use
double-sided printing function, recycled paper; or choose “2 pages per
sheet” printing function; and

o maximize usage of e-mails, internal networks and scanners to send or

store documents electronically.
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To enhance environmental awareness of the staff not just within the office,
but also in everyday life, the Group also provides some environmental-friendly
tips to employees, such as “Green Christmas Tips” for reducing the waste of
packaging materials and food resulting from Christmas presents and meals.

Climate Change

As the principal business of the Group is office-based, there are no significant
climate-related issues which have impacted or which may impact the Group. In
view of the possible natural disasters or adverse weathers which might affect
the Group's operation, a business contingency plan is in place to define the
recovery process for restoring the critical business functions of the Group and
minimising the loss of revenue, customers or data. The staff handbook of the
Group also stipulates the work arrangements for office in the event of typhoon
or rainstorms.

The Group conducts year to year comparison for the data on its GHG emission,
the use of resources, including electricity consumption, and discharges of
non-hazardous solid waste to quantify the Group’s achievements in terms
of its measures on emission and waste reduction and initiatives on efficient
use of resources. The management considers that the overall results of the
environmental protection measures are satisfactory, and the Group will
continue to make contributions to environmental protection.

SOCIAL SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
Employment

Employees are crucial assets of the Group. A caring workplace helps enhance
employees’ sense of belonging. Comprehensive guidelines and procedures
regarding human resources, including but not limited to recruitment, working
hours, rest periods as well as compensation are established. Guidelines on
recruitment, promotion and staff appraisals are set forth in the Recruitment
Policy. Employees who commit misconducts or violate company rules may
be dismissed in accordance with the Group’s dismissal policy. To encourage
retention and foster a sense of belonging, a remuneration policy and structure
is formulated to govern the remuneration package of all management and staff
of the Group. In addition to maternity leave, paternity leave and condolence
leave, employees are entitled to birthday leave which shows the Group’s
emphasis on its relationships with employees. Other benefits and welfare are
documented in the Group's Staff Handbook. To promote a breastfeeding-
friendly working environment, the Group has also joined the “Say Yes to
Breastfeeding” campaign launched by UNICEF HK in collaboration with the
Food and Health Bureau of the Department of Health.
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During the year under review, the Group had a total of 31 full-time employees REBEFERN  AEBEEINEZ2BEES  REAR
and the turnover rate was 16.9%. The following tables demonstrate the  A16.9% A NEIRBERIZERE R Fi R &
distribution of employees and turnover by gender, age group and geographical 112 2| D E 8 5 B ML = -

region.

Female

g

~ Employee diversity -EE%KI

~ Employee turnover rate -EERAE % 276 379

Age

under 30 30-50 Above 50
F#

30T 30E505% 505 E

~ Employee diversity -EE%KI

~ Employee turnover rate -EERAE % 13.8 44.8 6.9

Outside
Hong Kong Hong Kong
FE FEUS

- Employee diversity -REZKIL

— Employee turnover rate -EERAE % 65.5 0.0

F-ERAEAESEARAF —B-_FFH
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Safe and Healthy Working Environment

The Group strives to create a safe working environment as recommended
by the Occupational Safety and Health Council in Hong Kong. For instance,
computer workstations for employees are designed in a way that will help
alleviate health problems like upper limb pains and discomfort resulting from
inappropriate postures. Reading materials in relation to occupational safety
and health are circulated to all employees to ensure they are equipped with
updated knowledge in this regard. The Group is committed to creating a
working environment free of discrimination and harassment, which can
reduce employees’ work stress. The Group prohibits discrimination in any
circumstances. Reporting channel is also provided to staff who feels being
treated unfairly and appropriate actions will be taken to address such issues if
they arise. Further, a business contingency plan is in place to protect the Group
from possible threats and risks caused by emergent situation or disaster in
order to maintain the safety of employees in such situations.

In response to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has taken
certain actions to strengthen the health and safety precautionary measures in
its workplace so as to ensure the health of its employees. Apart from increasing
the frequency of office cleaning and sterilisation, employees are also required
to wear surgical face masks in office areas. Epidemic prevention supplies such
as surgical face mask, thermometer and alcohol-based hand sanitisers are
provided in the office. As a droplet and contact precaution, acrylic partitions
have been installed at the reception counters. The Group had strictly followed
guidelines and announcements made by the Center for Health Protection in
regards to epidemic prevention, and the Group strives to provide a healthy and
safe working environment for employees.

Given the nature of the Group’s money lending business, there was no
significant risk relating to employees’ health and safety. During the year under
review, there were neither work-related fatalities nor any lost workdays due to
work injury. The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and other health and safety-related laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Group.
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Development and Training

The Group adopted a Staff Training and Development Policy with the aims to
improve and enhance its competitiveness in the financial market as high-quality
staff training forms the foundation for the provision of superior financial
services to the customers. Staff training (including the distribution of training
materials) is provided regularly on any updates or information, in particular,
in relation to the money lending industry with reference to the fast-changing
market environment, the business objectives of the Group and the relevant
requirements of the regulatory bodies. A self-development sponsorship policy
is also in place to encourage continuous learning and development of staff by
providing financial supports to nurture talents and explore various potentials of
staff.

The Group provides continuous professional trainings to employees to ensure
they are equipped with updated knowledge and skills to perform their duties.
Staff training is conducted every year to ensure employees are well-informed
of the policies and procedures of the Group. Besides, staff trainings in relation
to the MLO, AML, counter-terrorist financing (“CTF") and anti-corruption were
conducted during the year under review. Details regarding the staff trainings
on AML, CTF and anti-corruption are set out in the sub-paragraph headed
“Anti-corruption, AML and CTF” in the section headed “Operating Practices”
in this ESG Report.

The following table demonstrate the breakdown of employees trained and
average training hours by gender and employee category during the year under
review:
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- Executive Directors and Senior Management ~ —#{TEHEREREEAS (hours) (/)\E5)
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Average training hours by gender
- Male
- Female

(hours) (/]\E5)
(hours) (/]\&5)

Employees trained by employee category REEEZAPNHZIIEER

— Executive Directors and Senior Management ~ —#{TE&ERSHREEAR %
- Management -EBAE %
~ General Staff -—REI %

RIS MEIER
-5t %
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Employees trained by gender
- Male

- Female

2022 2021

—E-CE —E-%F

4.22 3.22

4.83 3.00

2.57 2.40

3.24 3.18

3.72 2.33

100 100

100 100

74 72

77 87.5

100 91.6
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Labour Standard

The Group emphasises the importance of labour diversity and equal
opportunities in recruitment and promotion matters. Candidates with different
qualifications and experiences are welcome in order to diversify the labour
base. The recruitment policy of the Group sets out a transparent mechanism
and practice for recruitment in compliance with the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group in relation to child
and forced labour prevention, recruitment and promotion, equal opportunity
and anti-discrimination. It also states clearly that criteria such as age, gender,
marital status, nationality, race, sexual orientation, pregnancy, physical
and mental disabilities and religious belief should not be considered in the
candidates screening process so as to ensure equal treatment to all applicants.
Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in the Group. To avoid illegal
employment of child and forced labour, each of the job applicants is required
to fill in an employment application form, in which personal data necessary for
ensuring that the applicant is over the statutory minimum age for employment
is collected. Personal information, such as the number of identity card, is also
collected for the sake of identity verification.

During 2022, no complaints were received regarding child or forced labour,
unfair treatment or discrimination during the recruitment and promotion
process. The Group is also not aware of any material non-compliance with
the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other
child and forced labour related laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

Given the business of the Group as a financial services provider, suppliers of
the Group are mainly service providers who provide services supporting the
daily office operation of the Group. The Group adopted a Vendor Selection
Guideline. During the supplier engagement and tender process, our evaluation
criteria include factors such as product and services quality, business operation
standards, delivery capabilities and price with respect to competitive fairness,
in general we will invite two or more parties to submit their quotation under
normal circumstances for new supplier engagement. The Group also works
with suppliers that supply office consumable products, and those that provide
printing and cleaning service. During 2022, the Group had around 57 suppliers,
and all of them are from Hong Kong.
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In order to build up cooperative relationships with different suppliers in a
socially responsible manner, guidelines are established and adopted to outline
the criteria to be considered when selecting suppliers and vendors with an
aim to establish a sustainable relationship with suppliers and to safeguard
the welfare of the workers, protect the community and the environment. The
criteria include the protection of workers’ human rights, safety and health by
the suppliers and so on. The Group's employees are required to follow the
guidelines when selecting suppliers and the Group will periodically review their
implementation.

Green Procurement

To promote green procurement practices in our operations, we have taken the
following actions:

1. Use LED fluorescent tubes;

2. Durable and washable wallpaper;

3. Carpets and floors with a material recycling rate of 70%; and
4. Use recyclable photocopier.

The Group evaluates and monitors the ESG risks along the supply chain in
accordance with the risk management policy of the Group. Details of the risk
management system are set out in the section headed “Risk Management and
Internal Control” in the CG Report of the Company set out from pages 33
to 35 of the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022. During 2022, the risk of suppliers bringing significant negative impacts
(whether actual or contingent) on the Group’s business is negligible, and the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance incidents of suppliers
regarding environmental and labour protections.

Products and Services Responsibility

The Group has always striven to provide diversified financial solutions to
customers. Honest and comprehensive information about the products is
provided to customers with the aim to help them make appropriate informed
decisions. In addition, with its customer-oriented principle, the Group
emphasises quality services to raise customers’ satisfaction. Members of staff
are encouraged to give prompt response and provide the best assistance to

customers.

The Group ensures the products and services provided are in compliance
with applicable laws, regulations and relevant guidelines, proper approval
procedures and relevant risk assessment would be conducted before launching
any new products. The money laundering and terrorist financing risks of all
existing products would be reviewed regularly as an ongoing monitoring

control of the product risk.
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The Group strives to provide quality financial services to the customers and
values customers’ needs. Customers who wish to make any inquiries, feedback,
recommendation or complaints may refer to the contact details set out in the
section headed “Dialogue and Communication” in this ESG Report. During

2022, the Group had not received any service-related complaints.

The Group registered its trademark with The Trade Marks Registry under the
Intellectual Property Department in 2013 to enjoy exclusive right to use the
trademark during its provision of financial services to customers and in the
Group's publications and advertising materials.

During the year under review, no material breach or non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations regarding the business and operations of the
Group was found. In particular, the Group adhered to the applicable laws
MLO.

advertising, the Group complied with the latest additional licensing conditions

regulating its principal business of money lending i.e., In respect of
imposed on money lenders and was not aware of any non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group

relating to advertising during 2022.

Data Privacy

The Group values security and protection of customers’ privacy and personal
data.
accordance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the

Information provided by customers is handled with due care and in

Laws of Hong Kong) (“PDPO") and other relevant laws and regulations.
Guidelines regarding the handling of confidential information are provided
to staff to enhance information security in business operations and across
departments. Emails are encrypted and passwords are added to attachments
when necessary in order to preserve the confidentiality of material information.
Statement for the collection of personal data is provided to customers before
the collection of personal data. A data protection officer is appointed by the
Group to oversee the Group's compliance with the PDPO.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with the PDPO and other relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group relating to privacy

matters.

The customers can contact the data protection officer of the Group via email to
contact@firstcredit.com.hk if they have any complaints or concerns in relation
to the Group's compliance with the PDPO and/or any other relevant laws and

regulations relating to personal data privacy.
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Anti-fraud and whistle-blowing policy

The Group has established an anti-fraud policy to detect and prevent
fraud within the Group. By implementing the fraud risk assessment, the
Group is able to dictate the frequency of risk assessment and apply relative
investigation procedures so as to minimize the fraud risk. The Group has also
implemented a whistle-blowing policy, which allows all staff and independent
third parties, including customers, suppliers and contractors, to report any
possible improprieties, misconducts, malpractices or irregularities in matters of
financial reporting, internal control or other matters to the Board or the Audit
Committee anonymously. The Group will handle the reports and complaints
with care and will treat the whistle-blower’s concerns fairly and properly. Any
person who is found to have victimized or retaliated against those who have
raised concerns under this policy will subject to disciplinary sanctions. There
was no legal case regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees during the reporting period.

Anti-Corruption, AML and CTF

Engaging in the money lending business, the Group’s employees have to deal
with money transactions in the day-to-day business operation. Potential risks
regarding improper or dishonest handling of money by customers or employees
cannot be neglected. Guidelines in relation to anti-corruption and fraud and
a policy and procedure regarding AML and CTF (“AML and CTF Policy and
Procedure”) are formulated and stated to the staff.

The Group strives to achieve high standards of ethics in its business operations
and does not tolerate any corruptions and other behaviours violating work
ethics. The Group stipulates the code of conduct in the staff handbook
and encourages the staff to report any incident of soliciting and accepting

advantages.

As part of the loan approval process, the Group will carry out appropriate
customer due diligence procedures on a risk-based approach to assess the risk
of money laundering and terrorist financing. Details of the Group’s customer
due diligence measures are set out in the Company’s AML and CTF Policy and
Procedure. Besides, measures regarding monitoring and reporting of suspicious
cases are also implemented and maintained throughout the operation of the
Group. Any suspicious case of money laundering or terrorist financing which
comes to the staff's knowledge will be reported to the money laundering
reporting officer (“MLRO") of the Group immediately. Taking the relevant
information into account, MLRO will evaluate the suspicious case on a case-by-
case basis and will report to the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit of the Hong
Kong Government as soon as practicable if he considers it necessary. To ensure
that the existing AML and CTF systems are up-to-date, effective and able to
efficiently manage the potential money laundering and terrorist financing risks,
regular reviews will be conducted.
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For the year under review, in order to fulfill the additional licensing condition
for money lenders to comply with the Guideline on Compliance of Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed Money
Lenders ("AML and CTF Guideline”) published by the Companies Registry, the
Company has enhanced its AML and CTF systems in accordance with the latest
AML and CTF Guideline. Staff trainings on AML and CTF were also conducted
during the year under review to update and familiarise the staff with the latest
AML and CTF measures and to provide an overview of the enhanced AML and
CTF systems of the Company. Reading materials in relation to business ethics
and anti-corruption were circulated to all staff, so as to enhance employees’
understanding on anti-bribery and anti-corruption.

Staff handbook of the Company sets out the code of conduct regarding
accepting and soliciting advantages. All members of the staff are required to
follow the code of conduct. A reporting mechanism is also established for staff
to report any non-compliance incidents in relation to bribery, corruption, fraud,

money laundering or terrorist financing.

No significant risks relating to improper or dishonest handling of money were
identified. The Group did not receive any whistle-blowing reports from its
employees during the year as well. There were also neither any confirmed
incidents or suspected incidents regarding bribery, corruption, fraud, money
laundering or terrorist financing against the laws of Hong Kong nor any legal
proceedings regarding corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees during the year under review. The Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and other laws and regulations relating to bribery, corruption,
fraud, money laundering or terrorist financing which have a significant impact

on the Group for the year 2022.

COMMUNITY

Initiatives and efforts of social service organisations, should be recognised
and supported. The Group will also explore opportunities to cooperate with
different organisations that share the same values and principles with the
Group. The Group strives to raise employees’ awareness in terms of social
involvement and civic consciousness by putting in both monetary resources and
time. The Group also established the ESG Team. Employees are also encouraged
to participate in community enhancement events such as volunteering and
fundraising activities.
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For the year under review, the community activities focusing on several areas of
contribution such as environmental concerns and health of the Group were as

follows:

January

—HA

March

May

A

June

NA

July

+A

-
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Lai See Reuse and
Recycle Program

FRHERERRTH

Earth Hour 2022

B —/NEF2022

Smoke-Free Run 2022

2R E 92022

Vegetarian day

FERRA

Enterprise Smoke-Free Warrior
Digestion Alliance Assemble

CEEEHHCH R

ASSEMBLE

Singing Bowl
IERRE R

Stretching Exercise

HRED

REBEFE RAEEZINTREMED (RR
RENERE) HREBHMT :

This campaign aims to remind people to protect
environment while enjoying the New Year tradition;
ZEHEHAREAMEZIHFERNRE T TRRE
wE

Try to choose green habits, advocate for eco-friendly
lifestyles and do our best to protect habitats for our
common future;

BEREROEE BERENEEFA BHABNR
EEEM  BREMHERKRFENER

Wearing sportswear and doing exercises, in order to
encourage smokers to kick the habit, create a smoke-
free social environment;

SEPEALEBTF DEDRUED MBS ERE - FE—
AEEtgrn:

To encourage the employees to engage in carbon-
reduction action to combat climate change and address
other environmental problems (Monthly Programme
from May to December 2022);

HEFE2ERIRITY  UEHRIRE C RRRE IR
BrHR(EYE_T__FRAET-_AHHAEA
Bl—R)

To strengthen efforts in educating employees about
the harmful effects of smoking and keeping a healthy
digestion, encourage smokers to quit smoking, and
create a healthy workplace;

B8 THBZEE L RGRENRE  SBREME
T B T

A time for employees to relax deeply;

BAFHEARE

Stretching can help improve flexibility, and, as a re

the range of motion of your joints; r“’!
HREDADRSFBRNE FMOEMEE:

E—FReREEARRA —TZ_FFRK
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2022 Programme Organization Details
—g-c EE HEE B
August Say Yes to Breastfeeding UNICEF HK Become a “Breastfeeding — Friendly Premises” to
for 2022 provide convenience to nursing mothers;
A 20287 ERENE]ED KMAHRZEESEBZES KA THARERESH]  REIGHRERERN:
EGh
September Mooncake Sharing Swire properties and Food Angel ~ To reduce food waste whilst celebrating Mid-Autumn
Programme Festival;
A ABDETE AEHERERE SHETIHEENTROORRHIRRE
Project Green Moon - Deliveroo/Caring Engaging Smart ~ Activity information was emailed to staff, so they can
Mooncake Boxes (by HK Housing Society) contribute to reducing waste by joining this activity;
Collection Campaign
A#REIBKITE FPPRZ/EHRE (B BRAERKEDHENERTEL FETILEEY R
FEHEETFAR) RPREE—DN:
October Dress Casual Day The Community Chest of We made donations to support social services provided
Hong Kong by the Chest's member agencies through joining this
activity; and
+A ERRAE EBREE BRMBEB2ENERY BRXBEEBRAS 2GR EM
RENHERE: K
December Green Gift Exchange at Internal activity Staff repackage items which were new and never been
Christmas Lunch Party used from home and exchanged during the Christmas
party to reduce waste.
+ZA ERFEMERREYE | AIHED BIRRFRAEANTYRENOE EELRY F
EITRB RTRDIRE -
AWARDS 518
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received the award of REE-_ZEZ - —F+_-_A=+—-BILFE A&

Caring Company (2021/22) from The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

which recognizes the efforts paid by the Group on ESG.

DIALOGUE AND COMMUNICATION

The Group will continue to maintain open communication opportunities with

various stakeholders on ESG matters from time to time. The Group values

every feedback and recommendations from its stakeholders on ESG matters

in order to improve its existing ESG policies and practice. Stakeholders may

write directly to the Group's principal place of business in Hong Kong at 1/F,
O.T.B. Building, No0s.259-265 Des Voeux Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong
Kong or via email to enquiry@firstcredit.com.hk for any inquiries, feedback and

recommendation regarding ESG-related issues.
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elite
partners

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of First Credit Finance
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 84 to 159, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.
KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. The matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on the matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Cont’d)

Key Audit Matter
BB ER

FARESEE(E)

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter
EEME N EERREEIE

Impairment of loans receivables

(Refer to notes 19 and 28(C) to the consolidated financial
statements)

The measurement of expected credit loss (“ECL"”) requires
the application of significant judgements which include the
identification of exposures with a significant deterioration in
credit quality, and assumptions used in the ECL models, such as
the probabilities of default, loss given default, expected future
cash flows and forward-looking macroeconomic factors.

Due to the significance of loans receivables (representing
approximately 77% of total assets) and the corresponding
uncertainty inherent in such estimation of ECL allowance, we
considered this as a key audit matter.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2022

Our audit procedures included the assessment of the
origination, segmentation, ongoing internal credit quality
assessments, recording and monitoring of loans receivables.

For collectively assessed ECL, we assessed the reasonableness
of the Group's ECL models, including the model input, model
design, model performance for significant loan portfolios.

We assessed the reasonableness of the Group’s criteria for
assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a
lifetime ECL basis and the qualitative assessment.

We challenged whether historical experience is representative
of current circumstances and of the recent losses incurred in
the loan portfolios and assessed the reasonableness of forward-
looking adjustments, including the economic variables and
assumptions used in each of the economic scenarios and their
probability weightings. Where changes had been made in model
parameters and assumptions, we evaluated the appropriateness
of such changes.

We also assessed and tested the sensitivity of the credit loss
provisions to changes in modelling assumptions.

For a sample of exposures that was subject to an individual
impairment assessment, we reviewed the Group's assumptions
on the expected future cash flows, including assumptions in
respect of the value of realisable collateral based on available
market information.

We also assessed disclosures in the financial statements relating
to the Group’s exposure to credit risk.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER (Cont’d)
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,

we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's

financial reporting process.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2022

Hitb & %

EFEERHEMEN EMENBRFRABER
BAEEGE TS HRE MR Z RS-

EEHRAVBRENERL NREEMBER
EENAHEMENBRETALANZELR -

EREGHBHRRE BENEERMELGLE
¥ %ﬂ&$ EEHMEHNEEBESMBR
RYABENEHBIETERNBREEAEEE -
i%w?ﬁéﬁfkﬁu°ﬁﬂﬂﬁaﬁﬁml
F MEERSEMENFERERRM EFA
EREE-RUITH EFREEMRS -

BERZATHEZEEH

EZABERBEESAMRASBEMNTETH
SHELREB(DAEI) WREREREE
MAFHWEINEEMBRR ASER L
AREHRAVBRENFEARMIFRERTE
MEBEABRBUANABEZERS -

@ﬁﬁm%ﬁ%

%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%%*%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ EE
BEENEN THEBEBRBRATREEBELE
BRHNER URERFHELERSTER R

EXZAER BEREFRAFULLZ HREHE
M EROERT R

ERZATHEREE BEXENUMBRS
@Eo



Independent Auditor’'s Report B 17 &2 Z BN R 5 continued &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report B 17 &7 E BN R 5 continued &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report B 17 &2 Z BN R 5 continued &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Mr. Siu Jimmy with Practising Certificate number P05898.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

23 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income {78 BRR A2 EHER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE—_T-_—_F+_A=+—HIFE

Revenue W e 6 50,692,834 60,239,303
Other income E A 8 716,677 425,305
Other (loss)/gain Hitb (F518) s 9 (29,537,000) 333,827
21,872,511 60,998,435
Administrative expenses THRAX (13,863,533) (13,921,073)
Impairment loss on loans receivables, net  JEUW E Fm B & 1B F 5 19, 28(c) (43,143,818) (57,750,801)
Written off of convertible bonds (“CB") W T RAR B 5
(TR iEs ) 20(a) (136,896,000) -
Other operating expenses HMs gy (10,102,994) (15,044,499)
Loss from operations TEEE (182,133,834) (25,717,938)
Finance costs s E R 10 (550,941) (904,598)
Loss before tax BxBlaiEsE 11 (182,684,775) (26,622,536)
Income tax credit/(expense) FEREeE, (FX) 12 203,286 (4,914,434)
Loss for the year EREBE (182,481,489) (31,536,970)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Hib2EUgzE (FX)
Item that will not be reclassified HEAGENMDE
subsequently to profit or loss: FHESKRZIER:
Fair value change in investment in NAFEFAEMBEE
financial assets at FVTOCI WaremEEREDN
NEEEE 2,252,000 (574,000)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FRNHEMEE Y
for the year (Fx) 2,252,000 (574,000)
Total comprehensive expense EATHBANEIEER
for the year attributable to the 2ERAXEE
owners of the Company (180,229,489) (32,110,970)
HK cents HK cents
Al gl
Loss per share BiREE
Basic HAK 16 (5.03) (0.87)
Diluted g 16 (5.03) (0.87)
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position iz #FEiR R XK

At 31 December 2022 R-_Z-_—H#+-A=+—H

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W BERZE 17 3,554,553
Right-of-use assets TRARAE 18 3,138,661
Loans receivables FERE R 19 145,763,881
Financial assets at fair value through AR FEFTAER
profit or loss (“FVTPL") (TAAFEFANEE])
MemEE 20 136,896,000
Financial assets at fair value through AAFEFTAEMEZE R E
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") ([LAAFEEFTAE M
2EWE])NEREE 21 218,000
Deferred tax assets EETHIBEE 24 21,600,100
Total non-current assets IERBEERTE 311,171,195
Current assets RENEE
Loans receivables FERE R 19 113,126,658
Financial assets at FVTPL AAFEFABREN
TREE 20 19,249,593
Prepayments, deposits and FERRE ek
other receivables H 8 U SR IE 5,149,868
Bank and cash balances RITRBE &% 23,430,576
Total current assets MEVEELRTE 160,956,695
Current liabilities REERE
Accruals and other payables FERTE A R H A B IR 1,238,020
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 1,372,752
Bond payable R EH 23 9,000,000
Current tax liabilities BNERTETE A (B 21,933
Total current liabilities mE B EeRE 11,632,705
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 149,323,990
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ZELERRHAR 460,495,185
Non-current liabilities FBER
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 662,804
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERRE 662,804i._ .
‘.J o
NET ASSETS BEFE )

F-ERAEAESEARAF —B-_FFH



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 55 87 F& 4R 72 3% continued #)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-——#F#+—-_A=+—H

Capital and reserves BEXRG#E

Share capital B A 25 72,576,000
Reserves L] 26 387,256,381
TOTAL EQUITY W 459,832,381

FAEISOEMI B ZEAaMBHER T =
FZAZ+t=ZRRESSHERRETIE T H
THEEREREZ:

The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 159 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2023 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Lui Cheuk Fung Lai Szu Yu
BEE BT
Director Director

BE BE
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consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity RS R B R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-_T-_—F+-_A=-+—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FAEHAAELE

Share Share Capital

capital premium reserve

th i fE X
(note 26(B)(i))  (note 26B(ii))
(Biat26(8)(i))  (MH&t26B(ii))

Contributed FVTOCI  Accumulated
surplus reserve losses
WAFETA
Hib2EWE
BAERS o)1
(note 26B(iii))
( Pz£26Bii) )

HK$ HK$ HK$

At 1 January 2021 RZE=—-%-A-H 72,576,000 356,661,862 141,829,615 213,460,470 - (292,584,596) 491,943,351
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - (31,536,970)  (31,536,970)
Other comprehensive expense FREM2ER:

for the year:
Fair value change on investment in WATEHALLZE

financial assets at FVTOCI WEHeREERER

NTEE - - - - (574,000) - (574,000)

Total comprehensive expense for the year FR2HM Y £8 - - -

- (574,000  (31,536,970)  (32,110,970)

Changes in equity for the year FRERLE - - - - (574,0000  (31,536,970)  (32,110,970)
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ-5+ZA=1+-8 72,576,000 356,661,862 141,829,615 213,460,470 (574,0000  (324,121,566) 459,832,381
Loss for the year EREE - - = = - (182,481,489) (182,481,489)
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMZERA :
Fair value change on investment in WATEHALEE
financial assets at FVTOCI Bt HEEREN
AREEY - - - - 2,252,000 - 2,252,000

Total comprehensive expense for the year FR2EF X 24 = = =

= 2,252,000 (182,481,489) (180,229,489)

Changes in equity for the year FREREE - - - - 2,252,000  (182,481,489) (180,229,489)
At 31 December 2022 W-ZE-—F+-A=+-H 72,576,000 356,661,862*  141,829,615*  213,460,470* 1,678,000%  (506,603,055)* 279,602,892

These reserves accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  *
HK$207,026,892 (2021: HK$387,256,381) in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

ZEREBERLERAVBERIEAN
FA 207,026,892 (22 = —
:387,256,381 7T ) °

E—FReREEARRA —TZ_FFRK
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| COﬁ{soIidated Statement of Cash Flows {F&8RERER

(26,622,536)

1,428,790
1,947,686

(104,167)
(12,956)
(53)
(137)

@)

363,596

(580,300)

904,598
57,750,801

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING LETYPNRLRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax MRELRTEE
Adjustments for: KUATEIERE:
Depreciation of property, plant and W BERBETE
equipment 17
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETNE 18
Gain on disposal of property, HEME BEREEZ
plant and equipment Wz 9
Others Hi 9
Bank interest income RITH B WA 8
Dividend income AR E A 8
Other interest income H ) B 8
Fair value loss on financial assets INATFEFAEZEN
at FVTPL TREENDTFEEE 9
Realised gain from financial assets IATFEAERN SR
at FVTPL BENCDERWR 9
Written off of CB 58 AT R (F
Finance costs MEEA 10
Impairment loss on loans receivables EWERREERE
Operating profit before working HEEEYAEE T
capital changes
Increase in loans receivables FE W E R N

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and

BN TR 2 e R E A IR

KB (4Eh0)

FERTE A R H A N 3R

35,075,315
(21,142,523)

(1,098,373)

(41,342)

12,793,077
(110,319)

other payables #m, CRd)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &i& (7)), Fi53H &
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREAENEH
Net cash (used in)/generated from KEES (FTA) B
operating activities ReFERE

12,682,758

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows f35 IR 5 M E IR continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_ZT_-_—F+_A=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

RETHNHRESRE

Bank interest received EUERITH A 53
Other interest received B UCE M 72 7
Dividend received 2R E 137
Proceed from disposal of property, HEWE HWERZE

plant and equipment FTi8 5B 180,000
Acquisition of financial assets at FVTOCI  WEEAAFEF A LM 2E

KWmEsmEE (792,000)

Proceed from disposal of financial assets & AR FEFT ABZH

at FVTPL TREEMMSRIEA 3,845,051
Purchases of property, BEWE BB MRE

plant and equipment 17 (1,875,511)
Net cash generated from investing WEEEMBHRSFE

activities 1,357,737
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REFETNRERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from consideration payable ERREMREHRIE 29 900,000
Repayment of principal portion of BEHEEELRESHY

lease liabilities 29 (2,015,208)
Repayment of bond payable BREENES 29 (1,000,000)
Repayment of consideration payable BEEMNRE 29 (2,000,000)
Interest paid ERFLE 29 (872,666)
Net cash used in financing activities RMEEEMARSFE (4,987,874)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN REeERBRSEEY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (BD),/HmigiE 9,052,621
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FVRERFLEEY

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 14,377,955
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EXRBLRFLEEY

AT END OF YEAR, represented by 8
Bank and cash balances RIT MR E AR 23,430,576

F-EREREEARAA

T _FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements iS85 RMTsE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE—_T-_—_F+_A=+—HIFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

First Credit Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and duly continued in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability under the laws of Bermuda. The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda. The address of its principal place of business is 1/F,
O.T.B. Building, Nos. 259-265 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). On 24 November 2017,
the Securities and Futures Commission directed the Stock Exchange
to suspend the trading in the shares of the Company. As at the date
of approval of these financial statements, the trading of shares of the
Company remains suspended.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKS$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

(A)  AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time, which
are mandatorily effective for the annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond

30 June 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and
Equipment-Proceeds
before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2018-2020

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2022
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

F7 75 3R 2R BT 5 (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_ZT_-_—F+_A=+—HIFE

(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

(A)

AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE MANDATORILY (A)
EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR (Contd)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT (B)

YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

ERAEEMBHEED ([F
M BHELED]) ZEF]

V=1
5

RAF gl £z BB R
ER LI PACTING

"\

RAFERBEBYBRE LA ZE
FIHAEERAFEERBEFE M
BRRRRA R IR GEEHBRER
Mz RELBERTZE -

B R R i R 2 $T AT R &g
BB HmE R

AEBETEREFEATICHEME R
RAEMB ] RASERT BB MBS
R

HKFRS 17

EREMBREENF 1757

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

B BHEENE 10K RE LS
F285% 2 EFT

s8]

Amendments to HKFRS 16

BBIBHREERNE 165 2 EFT

Amendments to HKAS 1

SE G ERIB 1R ZER]

Amendments to HKAS 8
g ERIE8HE 2185

Insurance Contracts and the related 1 January 2023
Amendments

R &% RAEEIER] —ZT-=%—HA—H

Sale or Contribution of Assets between A date to be determined

an Investor and its Associate or Joint

Venture
RAERAMEARRALOEIEG AHEE
BELNEIEE

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

ERHONEERE

1 January 2024
—ZE-m&F—HF—H
Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2023
Non-current and related amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)
ET%%%E%;‘E@U&?F%%&&E%%E% ==
5% (ZZE - ZF) 2 ABRER]

—=%—A—H

Definition of Accounting Estimates

FRHAE 2 ER

1 January 2023
=

—E_=%—H—H

F-ERAEAESEARAF —B-_FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & 84 55 38 22 MY 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-Z-_—F+-_A=+—HItFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG 2. Bﬁmé;ﬁﬂjﬁiﬁ%;ﬁ-ﬂu ([&
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BUEREED]) 215
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d) Z)

’\

(B) NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSS IN ISSUE BUT NOT (B) ERMIEMAKRERZFTA] MLE
YET EFFECTIVE (Cont'd) FIEABUEREER (£)

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax Related to Assets and 1 January 2023
Liabilities Arising from a Single

Transaction

et ERIE 125 2 B85 HE-XZELACZAENBERBEN —T-_=F—-H—H
EERIA
Amendment to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of accounting policies 1 January 2023
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BEHEREIRR R —T-_=F—A—H

%%ﬂ?ﬁ%iﬁ%éﬁ'Jﬁﬁiﬁ%%Z%Z{@ﬂ

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, BN SCPTat 69 ¥ AT RS T BB 18

the directors anticipate that the application of all other new WMEEAIN EZTEBMERAMAEM

and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the AT RAEHEFT BB B MG R A

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future. RERTEHEEMBRTEKXER
2 X
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE—

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

(B)  NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (Cont'd)

(@)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

. specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the right exists if the conditions
are met at the end of the reporting period,
even if the lender does not test compliance
until a later date; and

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current
or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at
31 December 2022, the application of the amendments will
not result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.

( &)

/H\j%% ?E ﬁ%$ continued #&)
T _F+-_A=+—HLFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements x5
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE—_ZT_-_—_F+_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, that are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as explained

in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are

described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—T-_—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(A)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
o has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE—_ZT_-_—_F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(B)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the
property, plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the property, plant and equipment, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The estimated useful lives

are as follows:

Buildings 10%
Leasehold improvements 50%
Furniture and fixture 50%
Office equipment 50%
Computers 50%
Motor Vehicles 25%
Vessel 12.5%

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—T-_—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

4. FEEHBER(£E)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

()

LEASES
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application or arising
from business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms
and conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components,
including contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a
property which includes both leasehold land and non-lease
building components, unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably expects
that the effects on the consolidated financial statements would
not differ materially from individual leases within the portfolio.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S B4 F& R 22 MY 5T (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-T-—F+-_A=-+—HILFE

4. FEEFHEK (£)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(C) LEASES (Contd)
The Group as a lessee (Cont’d)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

J any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date, less any lease incentives received; and

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any

remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end
of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life

and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and

included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

/Hj f% &i@ Bﬁ %E (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE T - —F+-_A=-+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

©)

LEASES (Contd)
The Group as a lessee (Cont’d)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at
the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed lease payments (including in-

substance fixed payments).

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset)

whenever:

J the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of

reassessment; and

o the lease payments change due to changes in expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE—_ZT_-_—_F+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(D)

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets to determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (“CGU") to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
CGU) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of CGUs, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount
of the group of CGUs.
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount

In allocating the impairment loss, the

of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of
the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—T-_—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

D)

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont'd)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on settlement date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income which are derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —H#+_-_A=+—HIL&EE

4. FEEHBER(£E)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(E)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on

the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model objective

by both selling and collecting contractual cash flows: and

o the contractual terms given on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,

except that at initial recognition of a financial asset the Group

may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value

of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that

equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent

consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination

to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in

the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—T-_—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Cont'd)

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that is required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL of doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments,
and will be transferred to retained profit.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income” line item in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 M 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZT-_—F+-_A=-+—HIEFE

4. FEEHBER(£E)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(E)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured

at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the

financial asset and is included in the “other gain/(loss)” in line

item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under an ECL
model on financial assets (including CB, loans receivables, other
receivables and deposits and bank balances) which are subject
to impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at the end of each reporting period to reflect changes in

credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the end of the reporting period.
Assessment is done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the end of the reporting period as well as

the forecast of future conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

/Hj f% &i@ Bﬁ %E (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE T - —F+-_A=-+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for loans receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these assets
are assessed individually for debtors with significant balances and/or
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Company measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.

(1) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the end of the reporting period with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportive, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

(@ an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

(b)  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

U 75 3R T2 MY BT (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-T-—F+-_A=-+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(E)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)

(1) Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

() existing or forecast adverse changes in business, (0 % B sl a
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to B HE
meet its debt obligations; TER B NEBE T BE
(d) an actual or expected significant deterioration in the (d) BB AKEEER
operating results of the debtor; or TEHREE S &
(e) an actual or expected significant adverse change (e) EHAHEE -/

in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet

either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

. when there is a breach of financial covenants by the . B AR RV BRE

debtor; or

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2022

4, TESFHHEE(

E) @MIA(E)
TREE (&)

() (FEEERFEZ LI (E)

f o

ZE_%‘

o=

)

ﬁﬁéﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ“iﬁ i‘E

Wﬁ%%a%&ﬁﬁé
KAF &8 EHEBFA
BEBBEMEIBAET

T Bl fP A R AE
EIRR &é?’]ﬁm?ﬁiﬁﬁﬁ‘ﬂm
AeeREENEERR
IRERAREEE LA BRIE
AEBBEAERAEEBENEHR

&AL IR AL

() BHZEE

AEBETHEREAUEEE
@ﬁﬁé?&i%i%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ'
TREEREELEL KM
HRA BRERL N K
AR EERRBEE LT

EESERT 4L D
fEf—EEE
LR S
ﬂﬁfﬂﬁ*ﬁﬁmﬁm'
FIER WA B

E’JTELBZ



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—T-_—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

(if)

(1)

Definition of default (Cont'd)

o information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay is creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportive
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

(¢)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of active market for the financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 M 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZT-_—F+-_A=-+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

(iv)

V)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of loans receivables, when
the amounts are over 2 years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL
on loans receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—T-_—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(E)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Cont'd)

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are considered
on a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward-looking macroeconomic information. For collective
assessment, the Group takes into consideration the
following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

. Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of loans receivables, where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss

allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-T-—F+-_A=-+—HILFE

4. FEEHBER(£E)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(E)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont’d)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or

when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the

Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred

asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and

an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group

retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of

a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise

the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing

for the proceeds received. On derecognition of a financial asset

measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset's

carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and

receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the

Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the

cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the revaluation

reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to

retained profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—T-_—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(B)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont’d)
Modlification of financial assets

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified. When the
contractual terms of a financial asset are modified, the Group
assesses whether the revised terms result in a substantial
modification from original terms taking into account all relevant
facts and circumstances including qualitative factors. If a
qualitative assessment is not conclusive, the Group considers the
terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of
the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net
of any fees received, and discounted using the original effective
interest rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
asset, after reducing gross carrying amount that has been written
off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the relevant
financial assets will be calculated at the present value of the
modified contractual cash flows discounted at the financial assets’
original effective interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred
are adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial
assets and are amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment
to the carrying amount of the financial asset is recognised in profit
or loss at the date of modification.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-T-—F+-_A=-+—HILFE

4. FEEHBER(£E)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(E)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual

interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its

liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised

at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including accruals and other payables,

lease

liabilities and bond payable are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,

the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial

liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profit or loss.

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are modified,

the Group assess whether the revised terms result in a substantial

modification from original terms taking into account all relevant

facts and circumstances including qualitative factors. If qualitative

assessment is not conclusive, the Group considers that the terms

are substantially different if the discounted present value of the

cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of

any fees received, and discounted using the original effective

interest rate, is at least 10 percent different from the discounted

present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial

liability. Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted for

as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as

part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. The exchange or

modification is considered as non-substantial modification when

such difference is less than 10 percent.
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(Cont’d)

(F)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—T-_—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand,

demand deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid

investments with original maturities of three months or less that

are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are

subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

0]

(i)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)

after deducting any amount already paid.
Retirement benefit obligations

The Group contributes to a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance for all employees in Hong Kong. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant
income and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed in the MPF Scheme. Under
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contribution to the MPF Scheme at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 M 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZT-_—F+-_A=-+—HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(©)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Cont’d)
(il)  Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognized at the
earlier of when the Group entity can no longer withdraw
the offer of the termination benefit and when it recognize
any related restructuring costs.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the
fair value (excluding the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair
value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will
eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions.

TAXATION
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

%%&ﬁ%%mmm%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - "+ _-_A=+—HIL&EE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

)

TAXATION (Cont'd)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover

or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.

REVENUE
Interest income from loan facilities

Interest income charged on loan facilities is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount
net of loss allowance) of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & 87 35 3R 2% MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE—_T-_—_F+_A=+—HIFE

4. FTESTEER(E)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(K)  PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

(L) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation

cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly not severally liable for an obligation,
the part of the obligation that is expected to be met by other
parties is treated as a contingent liability and it is not recognised

in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits has become probable.
If it becomes probable that an outflow of future economic
benefits will be required for an item previously dealt with as a
contingent liability, a provision recognised in the consolidated
financial statements in the reporting period in which the change
in probability occurs, except in the extremely rare circumstances

where no reliable estimate can be made.

(M) RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(A) A person or a close member of that person's family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or the Group’s parent.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE—

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(M)  RELATED PARTIES (Cont'd)

(B)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member

of a group of which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A);

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); or

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of a person are those family members who

may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that

person in their dealings with the entity.
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(Cont’d)

(N) GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expense or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are costs recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 4, the Directors are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations, that the Directors have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4, ECL measured as an allowance equal to
12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage
3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing whether the
credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Group takes into
account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #R & 87 35 3R 2% MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE—_T-_—_F+_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TESTHE (&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 87 35 3R 7% MV 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_ZT_-_—F+_A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

ECL allowance for loans receivables

The directors estimate the amount of ECL allowance for loans receivables
based on the credit risk of loans receivables. The amount of the loss
allowance based on ECL model is measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
Where the future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances, a material
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2022, impairment allowance for loans receivables
was approximately HK$461.50 million (2021: approximately HK$465.00
million).

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 December 2022, a deferred tax asset of HK$21,785,427
(2021: HK$21,600,100) which principally arising from the provision
for impairment on loans receivables has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised on the tax losses of HK$324,812,740 for non-operating
subsidiaries due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in the future, which is a key source of estimation uncertainty especially
the uncertainty on how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress and
evolve. In cases where the actual future taxable profits generated are
less or more than expected, or change in facts and circumstances which
result in revision of future taxable profits estimation, a material reversal
or further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal or
further recognition takes place.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 S B4 ¥ 3R 72 Mt 5T (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_ZT_-_—_F+_A=+—HLFE

6. Wz

6. REVENUE

KEEMAR (REREP

Revenue from other sources other than

contracts with customers:
Interest income from loan facilities (Note)

FISLHAHISN) 2 s :
EXBE RN BN (M)

50,692,834 60,239,303

Note: Amount included interest income of HK$35,528,052 (2021:
HK$40,724,605) contributed by credit-impaired loans receivables. As at
31 December 2022, the gross principal amount of these credit-impaired
loans receivables was HK$284,985,528 (2021: HK$260,861,505) and the
corresponding ECL was HK$218,145,147 (2021: HK$168,195,940).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all of the Group’s revenue has
been generated from the provision and arrangement of credit financing
in Hong Kong. Revenue represents interest income earned from loans
offered to the Group's customers. Information reported to the Group's
chief operating decision maker (the executive directors of the Company),
for the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of the Group's
performance, is focused on the operating results of the Group as a
whole, as the Group’s resources are integrated and no discrete financial
information is available. Accordingly, no segment analysis or information
about the Group’s products and services was presented.

All of the Group's revenue from external customers and assets was
generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021. For the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021, no revenue from a single external customer amounted to
10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% 3R 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_ZT_-_—F+_A=+—HIFE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Halg A

Bank interest income RIT RS A 53
Dividend income g S A 137
Other interest income H A A B A 7
Sundry income HIEIA 425,108
Government grants (Note) BT 8 B (B &%) -
425,305

Note: Government grants mainly represent subsidies received in connection with MieE: BB £ BEiRE BB R ATEREBAT (B

the support from the Anti-epidemic Fund of the Government of Hong EMEES I OIEBETRINOMAL -ZEWH

Kong Special Administrative Region. There are no unfulfilled conditions or I A 8 AR E R IR ek B 2 B M A

contingencies relating to these subsidies. FIHE-

9. OTHER (LOSS)/GAIN 9. Hi(EHE) WH

Fair value loss on financial NAFEFABENEREEDN
assets at FVTPL NEERE (363,596)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BERZEN KR
plant and equipment 104,167
Realised gain from financial assets NAFEFAEZNEREEDN
at FVTPL BRI 580,300
Others Hit 12,956
333,827

F-ERAEAESEARAF —B-_FFH



. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7& 81 75 3R EE continvea #)
- For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T - —F+-F=+HILFE

10. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on lease liabilities
Interest on consideration payable
Interest on bond payable

10. B ER

HEBENTE 76,392
EAAREHFE 40,042
EREHFBHFE 788,164

904,598

11. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is stated after charging the following:

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Legal and professional fees

Written off of CB

Impairment loss on loans receivables, net

11. BRBIATE 18

AEEMEEABES G TIISE:

ZEET & 800,000
WM BERZENE

1,428,790
FRAEEENE 1,947,686
EEMEEEBR 3,580,653
T8 AT HR AR (E 2 -
FENE TRV R B B 1 E R 57,750,801

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax

Provision for the year
Over-provision in prior years

12. FifsH (ER) BxX

BIEAR A —F B RIS

Deferred tax (note 24)

TR 35,914
BEFEBERE (78,786)
(42,872)

EERTE (MsE24) 4,957,306
4,914,434
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% 3R 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—T-_—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Cont’d)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of assessable profits of a corporation will be taxed at 8.25%, and
assessable profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. For the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, Hong Kong Profits Tax of the
nominated Group company is calculated in accordance with the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime. The assessable profits of other Group
companies in Hong Kong will continue to be taxed at the tax rate of
16.5%.

The reconciliation between the income tax (credit)/expense and the loss

before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as follows:

12.

8 (ER) BxX (#)

IR IE A S TR AR H - 2 5] 82,000,000 7T &
SERE A 2 B R 58.25% @ M8 i82,000,000
BILEFABAEZHER165% HEZT
TZFRZTE—F+ZA=F+—HItF
B BREEEQARNTBANEH HIRBRH
BRMASTE HthAEENESAAH
FERT R AL B 1216.5% B0 Bl RERFR

FrEM (BER) /HXERBIBERIE
AR EZ B RN

Loss before tax B T AT S 18 (182,684,775) (26,622,536)
Tax at the applicable tax rate of RERATE165% (ZT=Z—F:

16.5% (2021: 16.5%) 16.5% ) st E 1A (30,142,987) (4,392,718)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable ~— HZE R W A KT # 2 (55,045) (1,147,408)
Tax effect of expenses that are TAIHIBRAI NG E

not deductible 30,230,577 12,735,216
Tax effect of temporary difference RERERHEENTBTE

not recognised 4,763,708 4,629,063
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses HABERERTIEEEN

not previously recognised METE (4,968,180) (6,830,933)
Over-provision in prior years WEFEEEEE (31,359) (78,786)
Income tax (credit)/expense PriSH (E%) /FX (203,286) 4,914,434
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‘Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=&

~ For the ygarended 31 December 2022 HE-_T-_—F+_A=+—HILtFE
13 >-EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

35 IRV 5T (continued i)
13. EERAIMX

RERMAX

Employee benefits expenses (excluding

directors’ emoluments): (T"BREEEH:) :
Salaries and allowances e RoERL
Performance related bonuses R
Pension scheme contributions RIRSET B

(A)  PENSION SCHEME CONTRIBUTIONS

No forfeited contributions were utilised during the year (2021: Nil).
No balance (2021: Nil) of forfeited contributions were available at
the year-end to reduce future contributions.

(B)  FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees in the Group during the year
included two directors (2021: two) whose emoluments are set out
in note 14. The emoluments of the remaining three highest paid
employees (2021: three) are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and e RMREVEF
benefits in kind
Performance related bonuses

=RABEIEL
5&%%#%

Pension scheme contributions

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2022

5,329,292
732,999
263,218

6,325,509

RN F IR

FAREHBERKRER(ZF =~
FoE) - NFHEA BEBERKHER
s (T - —F E) T RAREH
R

hekm#HER

FR ARERLRSHIERDEM
ZEF (T4 RB) HMe
UMM 14 - ER = A BB HIES
(ZF=—%:=8)2Be #ERT
mF

1,008,951
103,041
44,065

1,156,057




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% 3R 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—T-_—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Cont’d)

(B)

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Cont'd)

The emoluments of the remaining three (2021: three) highest paid
employees fell within the following bands:

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/% 7T

13. BEE®/AMX (&

(B)

hER=HER (&)

HBR=F (ZE=_—F =ZR)&aH
EEOME N FIATEHEE:

2022
—g=-=

Number of
employees

EE A

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(A)

DIRECTORS' AND CEO'S EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration of the directors and the CEO for the year ended
31 December 2022 disclosed pursuant to applicable Listing Rules
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is set out below:

14 EE|/AE R &=

(A)

EERITHRASME

RIEEA LR A REB QR
BEENTREHHZE - -

+ZA=Z+—BLEFENMEE W
T

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a director/CEO,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
RETATUESE THEZSH (FRAFATHAMBEAT)

FiRtRBE SRS E

Performance Pension
related scheme
Salaries bonuses  contributions
ek B#he
e 14 HELEEA
HK$ HK$ HK$
Executive directors: BTES:
Xie Si Bk - 240,000 - - 240,000
Lui Cheuk Fung HE 660,000 - - = 660,000
Lai Szu Yu BEIF - 240,000 - 12,000 252,000
Ho Yuen May May fa 98 2k - 715,000 - 18,000 733,000
Independent non-executive directors: B EHITES:
Fung Kam Man R 120,000 - - - 120,000
Wang Zhiwei Fh# 120,000 - - - 120,000
Wong Kin Ning ERE 120,000 - - - 120,000
Li Long i 120,000 - - - 120,000
Choy Sze Chung Jojo mmm 120,000 - - - 120,000
Total B 1,260,000 1,195,000 - 30,000 2,485,000

F-ERAEAESEARAF —B-_FFH
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‘Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7S 84 7% R 72 M1 5 (continued &)
"~ For the year ended 31 December 2022 H#E_—_ZET_-_—F+_A=+—BItFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS  14. EEFER RN (&
- (Cont'd)

~ (A) DIRECTORS" AND CEQ'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd) (A BERTBEZME (&

The remuneration of the directors and the CEO for the year ended BEERTREZBE_ZS=-—F+=
31 December 2021 is set out below: A=t—HIEFENMSEINWT

Executive directors: BITES:
Xie Si Bk - 240,000 - - 240,000
Lui Cheuk Fung (Note (a)) 52 (MEa) 469,333 - - - 469,333
Wong Kai Lun (Note (b)) ERUE (M (b)) - 172,419 - 5,750 178,169
Lai Szu Yu BRI - 240,000 - 12,000 252,000
Ho Yuen May May Al 0 7% - 711,935 - 18,000 729,935
Independent non-executive directors: BIEHITES:
Fung Kam Man B8R 120,000 - - - 120,000
Wang Zhiwei T 120,000 - - - 120,000
Wong Kin Ning (Note (a)) ERE (Mt@) 85,333 - - - 85,333
Chan Tung Tak Alain (Note (b)) RiEeE (b)) 35,000 - - - 35,000
Li Long £ 120,000 - - - 120,000
Choy Sze Chung Jojo BB 120,000 - - - 120,000
Total k) 1,069,666 1,364,354 - 35,750 2,469,770
Notes: B 5
(@)  Appointed on 15 April 2021. (a) R —FMA+RAERE T
(b)  Resigned on 15 April 2021. by R-ZE-_—FHWNA+HBET-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—T-_—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

14 EE/ARRE (&)

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

(A)

DIRECTORS’ AND CEQ’'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

The CEO of the Company and her emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by her as the Chief Executive
Officer.

There was no arrangement under which a Director or the CEO
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year
(2021: Nil).

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there
were no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the Directors
or any of the five highest paid individuals as set out in note 13
below as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

The executive director’'s emolument shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive director's emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company (including any person who
at any time during the year was a director) or the director’s
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

EERTTBREEME (&)

EXFBEBEARRITHRAR AN
BIERAE R TT IR AR PR AR 75 2 B
4o

FARBEERTHREZNEXRAE
MEEAMEN R (—F = —%:
&) -

HE_Z-_—_FR-_F-_—F+=-A
=ST-ALFE - AEEHERNES
S TXHFI3ME AR &= MAL
AR AT A 32 BkRE A A Rl RROIE
YE B DN A ZN 6 ] ok N A 2N 52 [ 14 i) 4%
B IERRER A E -

EXFRBTEEZCME IR EER
BARABARAEEEBRREZ RS
s e

EXRBILIFNITESOME 5L
REREARBESRIRHE 2 REM
XA e

EERR5 ZHABHNERX

Rz

ARAEZ (BRRFALAERS
BEEZHEAADREENHEER
BERFEAFRERMSE DRE
BUIARRRUERFI W77 BEAREEZ
BEHNERRS ZHREHTHE
BEELHENEANES -

E—FREREEERAT —TZ_FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #5725 84 75 3R ZRH¥ 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZT-_—F+-_A=-+—HIEFE

15. DIVIDENDS 15. R &
The directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend to EETEBEREEZE T __F+=A
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). E+—ALEFE(ZTE—F:8)AKRE

IR (T BB o

16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. BREE
BASIC LOSS PER SHARE BREANERE
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss for the BREABBHERARRHEAE AEL
year attributable to owners of the Company at HK$182,481,489 (2021: FAEIE182,481,4898B L (Z T = —4F
HK$31,536,970) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 31,536,970 ) R F AN E BT & B R INAE
3,628,800,000 (2021: 3,628,800,000) in issue during the year. 15 1% £13,628,800,0008% (=T = — 4 :

3,628,800,0000% ) 5+ & -

DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE BREEBHRE

Diluted loss per share for the loss for the year attributable to the owners HRARBREE T -_—_FR_T——
of the Company was the same as basic loss per share as the Company F+ZA=+—HIEMEFE  WETMB
did not have any potential ordinary shares during the two years ended E#EERR WARREE ARBGEANE
31 December 2022 and 2021. BrzeRESHRREAGRENEEMER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3 & 84 %5 3R 2R My 5F (continued 1)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-_Z-__—F+-_A=+—-HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. W% -BERRZRE

Leasehold  Furniture and Office Motor
Buildings  improvements fixture equipment Computers vehicle Vessel

HE RER

s nREE EERE  HOE B RE i
HKS HKS HKS HKS
& & & 7 & &7 &

Cost ;%9

At 1 January 2021 RZF--5-f-8

Additions AE

Disposals RE

Witten off W

At 31 December 2021 and RZFZ-F+ZA=+-BR
1 January 2022 ZFZZF-F-H

Additions AE

At 31 December 2022 RZFZZ#+-A=+-H

Accumulated depreciation RitiE

At 1 January 2021 RZF=-5-f-H

Charge for the year ERi

Disposals RE

Witten off k]

At 31 December 2021 and RZFZ-F+ZA=+-RR
1 January 2022 ZZZZf-F-H

Charge for the year ER%E

At 31 December 2022 RZFZZFtZA=1-A

Carrying amount FEE

At 31 December 2022 R-E-~#1-A=t-H

At 31 Decerber 2021 R-E--#1-A=+-H

E—FReREEARRA —TZ_FFRK



Cost

18. FHEEE

Lease
property
HEYE

HK$
&I

Leasehold
land
HE1H
HK$

&I

At 1 January 2021 RZZTE-_—F—A—H

Written off i 8

At 31 December 2021 and RZBZ—F+ZA=+—HK
1 January 2022 and T HF—-A—HK
31 December 2022 “E-F+-A=+—H

Accumulated depreciation RitineE

At 1 January 2021 RZZEZ—F—A—H

Charge for the year FRZH

Written off EiE!

At 31 December 2021 and RZEZ—F+ZA=+—HK
1 January 2022 —E--#%—H—H

Charge for the year FAZH

At 31 December 2022 RZEBEZZ_F+=-_A=+—H

Carrying amount REE

At 31 December 2022 RoZEZ—F+-A=+—H

At 31 December 2021 WZZEZ—F+-_A=+—8H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 & B4 5% 38 22 Mt 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HEZZ-_—F+-A=+—HIFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Cont’d)

The following table is the amount recognised in profit or loss:

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

CREEENE

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of HK$1,637,440 for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$2,091,600).

For both years, the Group leases various offices for its operations. Lease

contracts were entered into for fixed term of 3 years (2021: 3 years).

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain different

terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the

length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition

of a contract and determines the period for which the contract is

enforceable.

19. LOANS RECEIVABLES

Fixed-rate loans receivables
Accrued interest receivables

R M5 SRS

o

Less: ECL on individual assessment
ECL on collective assessment

BB ENEREEEER

SRAFNEREEER

Analysed as:
— Non-current
— Current

-
- 3ER®
- B

18. EFAIEEE (&)

TERAEREZERNESRE:

1,947,686

BE T+ _-_A=+—HIFE
AEBRHEMEANRESTLBEAR
1,637,440 70 ( Z & = — 4 :2,091,600/8
TL) e

REMEFE FAEEAREEERES
MRE-HEEHL= ¢WIE%E(_7
—FZE)RIZ-BEEBRRTRERE
BERER - WEE DR ER RGN R EEE
ERFRFETARERRNRER  KNEE
BREHNNERLETE AL REIAITE
HARR

19. BIRE R

665,879,514
58,007,278

723,886,792
(332,646,090)
(132,350,163)

258,890,539

145,763,881
113,126,658

E—ReREEFRAR —ZT__FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-T-—F+-_A=-+—HILFE

19. LOANS RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

The range of effective interest rate of fixed-rate loans receivables are
from 3.6% to 46%.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by management.

The loans receivables above were denominated in HK$. The credit quality
analysis of the loans receivables were as follows:

j%% ﬁ&i@ MUL %E (continued #&)
19. ERER (#&)

EWEBERZERMNEKBEN F3.6%=
46% -

AR ER B — B R AR R I R U B A R R 7
K EERBRRERE-ERETHRER

P ERERAB T E BRRERNEE
HEDWWOT :

2021
—T—F
HK$
BT

Neither past due nor impaired R EITN AR RE
- Secured —HEH 19,299,138 23,940,294
— Unsecured — 4 51,941,448 95,575,278
Less than 3 months past due BHATRE=M@A 29,223,514 9,211,025
Over 3 months past due m BB =@ A 25,549,488 2,362,211
126,013,588 131,088,808
Impaired (Note) AAE (KaE) 551,930,176 592,797,984
677,943,764 723,886,792

Note: Represents the gross amount of individually impaired loans receivables for
which impairment loss has been provided partially or in full as at the end of
the reporting period.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
customers who have repayment to the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors were of the opinion that no provision for impairment
on these loans was necessary as these loans receivables would be
substantially/fully settled subsequent to the reporting period or there
had not been a significant change in credit quality that these balances
were still considered fully recoverable.

As at 31 December 2022, amongst all past due but not impaired
loans, a secured revolving loan of HK$19,092,362 (2021: Nil) was
secured by equity interest in a private company with value amounted to
HK$80,525,004 (2021: Nil). Save for the above, the Group did not hold
any collateral in respect of the remaining individually past due but not
impaired loans receivables as at 31 December 2022.
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RZZEZZF+ZA=+—H RABEEAE
HERRENERT —Z5RIFERER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 S B4 ¥ 3R 72 M 5T (continued )

Details of movement of ECL allowance for the year ended 31 December
2022 and 2021 is set out in note 28(c) to the consolidated financial

statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group pledged loans receivables with
aggregated amount of approximately HK$32,000,000 for a bond payable
described in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements. The Group

had settled the bond payable in 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE—_T-_—F+_A=+—HIFE
19. LOANS RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL

Financial assets mandatorily measured

SREIA QNP ERSABR

19.

20.

EWER (&)
HE-_ZT-_—_Ff#k-_FT=-—%F+=ZA
T+ BLEFEEHACEFERENED

BRI AR A BT WK M FE28(0) ©

R-B-_—F+-fF=+—B A&£ECH
SR A BEHEER R M RE23 5T At 40 B 5 (8 4K 1
48 %8 %) A32,000,000/% It A FE UL B 3R - A &
ER - —FORHEERMNES-

%’D\SFEE“I'AE?:IE’\JQEQE

at FVTPL: AENEREE:

— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —-REBLTZRAES 12,131,676 19,249,593

-CB — R ES - 136,896,000
12,131,676 156,145,593

Analysed for reporting purposes REWEOAEZN

— Current assets —mENAE 12,131,676 19,249,593

— Non-current assets —FRBEE - 136,896,000
12,131,676 156,145,593

F-ERAEAESEARAF —B-_FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - —H#+_-_A=+—HIL&EE
20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Cont'd)

(A)

INVESTMENT ON CB

Movements of the CB for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 are as follows:

E\j %% &i%ﬁﬁ %—: (continued #&)

20. LAFEFABRENERE

E(

(A)

I

F=9),

ABMEEFRE

HE_ZT__FR-_ZE-_—F+=A
=t+—HIEFEARRESFHEFHN
T

HK$

IT

At 1 January 2021 RZT=—_—F—H—H -

Addition 8 0 134,944,000

Change in fair value NTEEES) 1,952,000
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZEBZ—F+ZA=+—HK

—E-—~#H—AF—H 136,896,000

Written off i 85 (136,896,000)

At 31 December 2022

WoZE-—F+-A=+—H

At 31 December 2021, the fair value of the CB as a whole is
calculated using the Black-Scholes model.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group received
investment in CB issued on 29 June 2020 (the “Issue Date")
with principal amount of HK$184,000,000, the CB which
were issued by a listed company listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (“the Listed Company”) in settlement of
the Group’s loans receivables with a carrying amount of
HK$203,508,216. The Group recognised the fair value of the
CB of HK$134,944,000 and derecognised the loans receivables
with carrying amount of HK$203,508,216 with the difference
recognised as a loss on derecognition of loans receivables of
HK$68,564,216 in profit or loss during the year ended 31
December 2021.

The CB bear interest at 1% per annum payable in arrears
annually with maturity on the 5th anniversary of the date of
issue of the Bonds i.e. 29 June 2025. The Group has right to
convert the CB into share of the Listed Company from the
date immediately after the expiration of three years from the
Issue Date of the CB (i.e. 29 June 2020) to 29 June 2025 at a
conversion price HK$5.5 per share. The Group has the right to
convert the CB into 33,454,545 shares of the Listed Company.

The Group designated the CB as at FVTPL upon initial recognition
with any gain or loss arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The fair values of the CB on initial recognition
and as at 31 December 2021 were determined based on the
valuation conducted by an independent valuer. The methods and
assumptions applied for the valuation of CB and its components
are set out as below:
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(A)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

/Hj f% &?E Bﬁ %E (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - "+ _-_A=+—HIL&EE
20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Cont'd)

INVESTMENT ON CB (Cont’d)

The inputs into the model at 31 December 2021, the stock price
of the Listed Company is HK$0.08; the conversion price of the
CB is HK$5.5 (Note a); the discount rate is 10.85%; the risk free
rate is 0.85% (Note b); the expected volatility is 72.66% (Note ¢);
conversion right is 5 years and no expected dividend vyield is 0%
(Note d).

Notes:

(a) The Listed Company adjusted conversion price of the CB due to
share consolidation approved at Special General Meeting was
effected on 16 September 2021.

(b) The rate was determined with reference to the yields of Hong Kong
government bonds and treasury bills as at the date of valuation.

(0) Based on the historical price volatility of the Listed Company.

(d) Estimated with reference to the historical dividend payout of the
Listed Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the CB were classified as non-current
assets because, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group expected the CB to be recovered or settled more
than twelve months after the reporting period. In assessing the
presentation of the CB as current and non-current, the directors
of the Company have taken into account the financial position of

the Listed Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, certain events occurred
which makes the recoverability of CB become uncertain, including
(1) the Listed Company failed to settle the CB interest in June
2022 and December 2022 which constituted a default event;
(2) the trading of the shares of the Listed Company had been
suspended since August 2022; (3) the Listed Company was being
filed a winding-up petition by a petitioner in November 2022;
and (4) the composition of the board of directors of the Listed
Company were dismissed by end 2022. The Group sought legal
advices regarding its entitlement priority of assets distribution
upon winding-up of the Listed Company. Taking into consideration
of the nature of the CB as an unsecured debt and the facts and
circumstance, the management is in the opinion the likelihood to
recover the CB is remote and the entire CB was written off with
a loss of HK$136,896,000 charged to profit or loss in the current
financial year.

20. ULAFEFFABRENEME

E(E)

(A)

AmRESRE (&)

R_E-—F+-_A=+—HBZER
ZMABEBA - ZETARANKRESR
0.08/ 7T AT REH WL IR(E RS5.5
B (Mfta) BEIR ¥ 210.85% : &
[E B F & 50.85% (K sEb)  FBH K
8 572.66% (Miskc) - R IEFH A
5 TEHIR B K A0% (MizEd) o

GEE

(@) HARELTRARZEMDAFERRE
FAIRXREHEER-_Z=-_—FNA
TARBEM ZLETRAARELFEE
AR ES  EHRE-

() FEDSEFBBRMGES LEES
WEER MRS RETE -

(0 BREZLDTRARWESLBEREZET
o

(d 2Z2EZLTRAFANBEREIKNS
#fhate

%

—EBE-—F4+-A=+—8@ar
AAREERR NEEBEHHRK
BEEERMERREB T —EAA KD
SEE WA RRESDERIERD
BE o R ET A AT R ,\%EE@U%/M@J
BREINIK AARNEFEEEZ
EmRBEWHBRR -

i}

HEZZ-_—F+=-A=+—HILF
B #ETETEHRE: (NZLW
NEBEENR T Z__FNARZE
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MBKEL: Q& EMRARKMNE =
T —FN\ARELESE: 3)%Lm
RERZEZZF+— AW — R =2H
AREBERER R@Z LT RAAE
FEERZZE_FFEHR ME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 5% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-_T_-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

20. UAFEFARBNEHE
E (&

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTPL (Cont'd)

(B) LISTED SECURITIES HELD FOR TRADING

(B)

FIEEEMN ETES

Listed securities held for trading:  #H{EEEHN L HHEH:
— Equity securities listed —REALTHRAE S
in Hong Kong 12,131,676 19,249,593
Analysed as: A
Current asset mENE E 12,131,676 19,249,593

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group received
equity securities listed in Hong Kong with fair value at date
of derecognition of loan receivable of HK$33,653,334 due to
derecognition of loan receivable of amount with HK$49,188,840
with the difference recognised as a loss on derecognition of loan
receivables of HK$15,535,506 in profit or loss during the year
ended 31 December 2022. This constituted a non-cash transaction

for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group received
equity securities listed in Hong Kong with fair value at date of
derecognition of loans receivables of HK$16,811,160 due to
derecognition of loans receivable of amount with HK$16,811,160,
therefore, no gain/loss on derecognition of loans receivables was
recognised in profit or loss. This constituted a non-cash transaction

for the year.

The fair value of equity securities listed in Hong Kong are based
on the current market prices of such equity securities as at the

end of the reporting period.

The above financial assets represent investments in listed equity
securities that offer the Company the opportunity for return
through dividend income and fair value gains. They have no fixed

maturity or coupon rate.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair value measurements of
the Group's investment in listed securities classified as financial
assets at FVTPL are recurring and are determined using level 1

input.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #375 84 7% 38 2R 53 continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_ZT_-_—F+_A=+—HIFE

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVTOCI 21. LA Et AEME2E WS
NEMEE

Non-current ERB

Equity investments designated HEERAUATFER AHAM
at FVTOCI ZEW S RARE
— Unlisted equity investments (Note) —JEEmRAEE () 218,000
Note:  Unlisted investment shares were measured at FVTOCI. Under HKFRS 9, aE: FELEMBERMDARFEFAHMEE
these investments are all classified as financial assets measured at FVTOCI. Wt E - RIBE B B EERIFH -
Subsequent changes in fair value of these investments are recognised RERENDBERUARATEF AL ME
in FVTOCI reserve and the cumulative gains or loss on disposals are HERFENCREE ZSREATE
recognised in retained earnings. WEEZHRUADTFET AELMEEI
HEOFEEER MEEEEN R
BENMRE B F R -
The above unlisted equity investments represent the Group's equity Ll FTRAREEAEENE BT
interest in private entity incorporated in Hong Kong. The directors of MRIHABTEBORE - RQAREEE
the Company have elected to designate these investments in equity BEEEZERTIAREEERURT
instruments as at FVTOCI. Ert AHAL 2 E W o
22. LEASE LIABILITIES 22. HEEE
At 31 December 2022, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows: RZTZ_F+-A=+—H HEBEHD

EEMBMT

Within 1 year —&FNRN 1,372,752
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFRA 662,804
2,035,556
Less: Amount due for settlement BRBBEBETRTZEAR
within 12 months shown IS EHRIA
under current liabilities (1,372,752)
Amount due for settlement after ERFHEEE TR ZEA%
12 months shown under B HRE E R FIB
non-current liabilities 662,804)
i
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEABENF AR 76,392 ” :
L
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease ERARNHERBEOMEFHREEERNE
liabilities was 5.54% (2021: 5.54%). 5B554% (ZE=—%:554%) °

F-ERAEAESEARAF —B-_FFH



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 S B4 ¥ 3R 72 Mt 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 H#E_—_ZET_-_—F+_A=+—BItFE

23. BOND PAYABLE 23. EfESH

= :VI\//Iovement of the bond payable is as follows: EfRER 2 EESHMT

At 1 January

10,000,000

Repayment B (1,000,000)
Accrued interests FEEHF B 72,986
9,072,986
Less: Accrued interests recognised W R FERT B R I Ho A FE S FRIB
in accruals and other payables R EETFLS (72,986)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 9,000,000
The balance is repayable within one year and shown under current EHREANR—FANEE TARBHEBEEBETZ
liabilities. 3l
The Group issued a bond with a principal amount of HK$10,000,000 R_E_ZEFARAEBETTAEHEAE
in 2020. No transaction costs attributable to the issuance of the bond. 10,000,000/ LW &% - FHITEF R BELE
The bond is secured by loans receivables of the Group, amounted to RHEA M E19FTI - EHF ARNEE &
HK$32,000,000 as described in note 19. The maturity date of the bond %8 /532,000,0007% 7T B & W B SR VE R - &
is falling on the first anniversary of the issue date. The interest rate FOWE BB ABTAMEN R —BFER-
of the bonds is fixed at 8% per annum, and the interest is paid semi- BEFENETFHE A% FEFEFIN
annually. The bond was fully settled in 2022. —R-ZBEBHFER T _FEHER-

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~ Annual Report 2022
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35 TR T BV 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_ZT_-_—F+_A=+—HIFE

24. DEFERRED TAX

The following are deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by the
Group:

At 1 January 2021 RZTEZ—F—HA—H
Charged to profit or loss FREBREZPOGE (FFFE12)

for the year (note 12)

IEHISIE

At 31 December 2021 RZE=Z—F+=A=+—H

and 1 January 2022 kT -_—f—H—H
Credited to profit or loss FFAFRNERERK (MFE12)

for the year (note 12)
At 31 December 2022 RZZB-_—F+-A=+—8

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for statement
of financial position purposes:

BRERIBEEE

Deferred tax assets

24, EERE

NTRASERBZECHAEERAR:

Provision for

impairment

Accelerated on loans
tax receivables
and CB
ROk &S
i (B 13 4

depreciation

(303,101) (26,254,305) (26,557,406)

540,778 4,416,528 4,957,306

AT Bt M B AR R M 5 A0 AT B IR 45 4
DT

21,600,100

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses amounted to HK$324,812,740
(2021: HK$354,922,920) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

R E IR B AR R T RIRZ THEE -
A It ¥ 5 R TE B518324,812,7408 o (=%
Z —4:354,922,920/% 70 ) © W M ERIELE
MIEAE HIEEEA LERBASE -

E—ReREEFRAR —ZT__FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

B 75 R TR MY BF (continued @)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_ZT_-_—_F+_A=+—HLFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

25. XA FRA

Authorised:
250,000,000,000 ordinary shares of

EE:
250,000,000,000%

HK$0.02 each FIR0.02B LW LB 5,000,000,000 5,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BITRERE:
3,628,800,000 ordinary shares of 3,628,800,0000%

HK$0.02 each B R%0.02)%8 T B F i AR 72,576,000 72,576,000

26. RESERVES

(A)

GROUP

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein

are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement

of changes in equity on pages 84 and 87 of this annual report

respectively.

NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES

0)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in an extraordinary
general meeting held on 24 December 2014, the change
of the domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands
to Bermuda was approved by the shareholders. The change
of domicile of the Company was completed on 5 February
2015. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE—

26. RESERVES (Cont’d)

(B) NATURE AND PURPOSE OF RESERVES (Cont’d)

(i)

(iif)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
Group’s reorganisation implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company's shares in 2009 and represented
the difference between the nominal value of the aggregate
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired under the
reorganisation scheme, over the nominal value of the share

capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore.

The capital reserve of the Company arose as a result of the
Group’s reorganisation implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company's shares in 2009 and represented
the excess of the consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired, over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange therefore.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company
arose as a result of the Group’s cancellation of the share
premium account of the Company.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed
surplus account is available for distribution to shareholders.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay dividend, or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

- the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of the Company’'s assets would
thereby be less than its liabilities.

26. & (

%%&ﬁ%%mmm%
T _F+-_A=+—HLFE

42 )

=

B) RHEMEKEMW (&)

(i)

(iif)

CENEEG

AEBNERFEBHTRAKREE
BREARABROR -_ZZTNF
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BEEAFIRBEONE QRN
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BARR
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The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’'s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adopt various means such as payment of dividends, issuance
of new shares, raising new debts or redemption of existing debts as may
be appropriate in the circumstances.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt
comprises borrowings and lease liabilities less bank and cash balances.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital,
retained profits and other reserves).

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group is in order to
maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public float of
at least 25% of the shares.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars on a monthly
basis on substantial share interests showing the non-public float and it
demonstrates continuing compliance with the minimum 25% public float
requirement throughout the year. As at 31 December 2022, 70.50%
(2021: 70.50%) of the shares were in public hands.

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 M 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZT-_—F+-_A=-+—HIEFE

27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. EXEBER

FEBEAERNTIZEERARELAER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 S B4 ¥ 3R 72 M 5T (continued )

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_ZT_-_—F+_A=+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. €T H
(A)  CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS A SETEESR

Financial assets:
Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets at FVTOCI

Financial assets at amortised cost

ERIEE:
UNAFEFABaNERERE
AR FEFAEMEERED

156,145,593

Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost REE#K ANHEN SR B E

TREE 218,000
R#EN AT ENSREE 283,689,900
SHEE:

12,184,945

(B)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE B MHURAFEF=MHEmMIA
(i)  Financial assets at FVTOCI — Unlisted equity (i) BARAFEFAEMEERZE

investment, at fair value

The fair value hierarchy is level 3, the following table
provided information about how the fair value of financial
assets at FVTOCI were determined (in particular, the
valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the
level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements based on degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements were observable.

31 December
2022
k- Janfent

+2B=+-8
HKS

% B & E —JF £ IR
4 BATE

AFEEBERABE M TERIE
HHEBENMEE LA FEFTA
Hth2ERENEMEENDR
FE (RFFBIR AT A E R
M7 R A BUR) - A RARIE A F
B EN@ASENTTERRRE
EEARFEFENRAFER
FKFHYE RS-

&

Unlisted equity
investment

FETRARE

218,000  Net assets value Discount rate of 20.6% The higher the discount  If discount rate increase/
adjusted for lack (2021: 20.6%) for rate, the lower the decrease by 5%, loss increase/
of marketability lack of marketability fair value decrease of HK$213,000
(2021: HK$19,000)
| N
218000 EEFE ARz HHERALR BREME ATE  EEREEN/H5% B .
(BEzms R 2 BH%206% HiE 8/ F213 0005 '
TRELEE)  (ZTZ-%:206%) (:gg;ﬁ :1,1?,000}%7@

T
L @f
o d

E—ReREEFRAR —ZT__FFH



- Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 472 84 3528 2Bt 5 continued #)
- For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T - —F+-F=+HILFE

- 28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd) 28. $WI A (&

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE (B) NUAFEFFEMNSHIE (£&)
(Cont'd)

There was no transfer between different levels of the fair value HE_T-_—_FR-_ZF-_—F+=A
hierarchy during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, =E+—HUEFEE TRAAFEERZ
and there was no change in valuation techniques for the following MY EER - BA T AREE R RS
Group’s financial assets that were measured at fair value on a RIBEFUHREEARNTEFENESH
recurring basis at the end of the reporting period: B E R E R E)

Financial asset at FVTOCI AR FEFAEM 2 E R
MemEE

Financial assets at FVTPL AAFER AR
SREE

Financial asset at FVTOCI AAFER A M2 E s

MepEE - - 218,000
Financial assets at FVTPL NAFEFABRED
SREE 19,249,593 - 136,896,000

19,249,593 - 137,114,000

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% 3R 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_ZT_-_—F+_A=+—HIFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 28. W T R (&
(B)  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE B) MURAFEF=EME@MIA(E)
(Cont’d)
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair value based ERERTIEBRG AR (BE=4H)
on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) were as follows: NAFESFENSHRIAZHERNT

At 1 January 2021 RZT=Z—F—HA—H - -
Additions NE 792,000 134,944,000
Change in fair value FABEMATEEZS

in profit or loss (included (FrAH AUz & E18)

in other gain and loss) - 1,952,000
Change in fair value in FPAEMEEREN A T EEES)

other comprehensive income (574,000) -
At 31 December 2021 RZTEZ—F+=ZA=+—H 218,000 136,896,000
Change in fair value in FFAEMEEREN AT EEZE)

other comprehensive income 2,252,000 -
Written off b - (136,896,000)
At 31 December 2022 RZZE-_—_F+-_HA=+—H 2,470,000 -

F-ERAEAESEARAF —B-_FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-T-—F+-_A=-+—HILFE
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

€

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The
Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Price Risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through its
investment in listed equity securities which are classified as
financial assets at FVTPL. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk and
return profiles. The Group's equity price risk is mainly concentrated
on equity securities quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower (2021: 10% higher/
lower), loss after tax for the year would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$1.21 million (2021: decrease/increase by
HK$1.92 million). This is mainly due to the changes in fair value of

held-for-trading investments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 MY 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—T-_—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

28. 2T H (&)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(€)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s counterparties default
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial losses to the
Group. The Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily attributable
to loans receivables, deposits and other receivables and bank
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets, except that the credit risks associated with loans receivables
is mitigated because they are secured over properties.

Loans receivables

The management expected the ECL of loans receivables based on
historical credit loss experience of the customers as well as the
fair value of the collaterals pledged by the customers to the loans
receivables. Based on assessment by the management, the loss
given default is from 25% to 100%.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group applies
internal credit rating for its customers. The Group considers all
loans receivables (except for unsecured loans with small loan
amount) as doubtful if, on an individual assessment by way of
discounted cash flow, the repayment of principal and/or interest
has been overdue and may not be recoverable and the fair value
of the collateral, in case of secured loans, may not be able to fully
settle the amount of the outstanding principal and/or interest.
Such loans receivables would be considered as loss immediately if
the collection of the principal and/or interest in full is improbable.
For unsecured loans with small loan amount, the Group considers
the loans receivables as loss immediately if the repayment of
principal and/or interest has been overdue and the collection of
the principal and/or interest in full is improbable.

(€)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 5% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-_T_-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(C) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)

Loans receivables (Cont’d)

28. $W I H (&)

© =cHEAREEESRMBE(F

SERRMBERNS (&)

EREF (E)

TERHERREBEEFRERG
HEERERHNEERBRER

The following table provided information about the exposure to

credit risk for loans receivables using the Group’s credit rating

system:
2022
—E-=
Average
loss rate
FHEEE
Performing B# 15% 125,914,795 13% 131,088,808
Doubtful REE 81% 483,854,045 74% 498,854,932
Loss B8 100% 68,174,924 100% 93,943,052
677,943,764 723,886,792

The expected loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information about specific
customers is updated.

Due to greater financial uncertainty triggered by the COVID-19
pandemic, the Group has increased the expected loss rates in the
current year as there is higher risk that a prolonged pandemic
could led to increased credit default rates.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7255

(Cont'd)

j %% ﬁﬁ ?E MUL %E (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE T - —F+-_A=-+—HILFE
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)

Loans receivables (Cont'd)

(a)

28. 2@ T A (£&)
C) ZrEREEEZLEE (£&)

The following table showed the movement in gross fixed-

rate loans receivables:

SERRFORER G (&)
JEWEF (&)
(@ TRIIREAESEREED

44
=

Stage 2
FERER
HK$
BT
Gross loans receivables e EREE
At 1 January 2021 RZE--%-f-A 117,745,266 11,818,193 794,933,666 924,497,125
New loans/financing originated BEBRIER/ BE 61,779,500 - - 61,779,500
Loans/financing derecognised or FEREEERSBEENER/
repaid during the year RE (M)
(other than write-offs) (52,340,355) (10,057,064) (132,587,572) (194,984,991)
Transfer to 12-month ECL (Stage 1) ERZ+_[ARHEERE
(B-l&R) - - - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL not ERZHEENED
credit-impaired (Stage 2) SHENEEEE (E2RB) (58,715,921) 58,715,921 - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL ERZEEAED
credit-impaired (Stage 3) FHEHEERR (B2ER) (16,318,453) (1,761,129) 18,079,582 -
Total transfer between stages ZRB AnERLE (75,034,374) 56,954,792 18,079,582 -
Write-offs iz - - (125,412,120) (125,412,120)
At 31 December 2021 and RIEZ-E+ZA=+-BR
1 January 2022 “E--F-f-H 52,150,037 58,715,921 555,013,556 665,879,514
New loans/financing originated BRENTER/RE 44,856,000 - - 44,856,000
Loans repaid during the year FREEENER
(other than write-offs) (HigaRRAN) (38,202,720) (1,639) (38,690,721) (76,895,080)
Transfer to 12-month ECL (Stage 1) ERZ+_[AARHEEEE
(5—KR) - - - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL not BEZEEENEN
credit-impaired (Stage 2) SHEHEERR(E2KR) (41,938,356) 41,938,356 = =
Transfer to lifetime ECL BEZEERNEN
credit-impaired (Stage 3) PEENLEEE (SZRE) (4,878,928) (3,530,677) 8,409,605 -
Total transfer between stages BB ANERET (46,817,284) 38,407,679 8,409,605 -
Write-offs g - - (48,535,316) (48,535,316)
At 31 December 2022 W-E--#+-fA=+-H 11,986,033 97,121,961 476,197,124 585,305,118

E-ERASREEERAR —FT-_FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 5% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-T-—F+-_A=-+—HILFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 28. €@t T H (&)
(C) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES C =REMBRSIEBZENEE (&)
(Cont'd)
Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment (Cont’d) = E R b R ER I (&)
Loans receivables (Cont'd) JEWEF (&)
(b)  An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL allowances (b) ffﬁg EHREEEEREBNES
is as follows: DA :
Stage 2
E R
HK$
oo
ECL allowance EREEEREE
At 1 January 2021 WZ%z-%-fA-A 9,011,571 1,236 510,362,095 519,374,902
New loans/financing originated E%tﬁﬁ%ﬁg%ﬁ/ﬁﬁ;ﬁ 4,430,354 - - 4,430,354
Loans/financing derecognised or FREEERXEEER
repaid during the year BH/BE( Miﬁﬁ%%)
(other than write-offs) (1,624,491) (467) (39,802,610) (41,427,568)
Transfer to 12-month ECL (Stage 1) ERE+ R i‘ﬁﬁﬁ
EEER(E-KR) - - - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL not EEF Egﬁéfﬁﬁ’]?ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
credit-impaired (Stage 2) EEER(E-KR) (7,412,020) 7,412,020 - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BREEE Jﬁfﬁﬁ’]?ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
credit-impaired (Stage 3) BEBE(£=KR) (1,740,690) (769) 1,741,459 -
Total transfer between stages FRBE ANERAE (9,152,710) 7,411,251 1,741,459 -
Movements due to changes in credit risk EEEREEERNEE) 407,949 3,765,197 90,574,869 94,748,015
Write-offs Wﬁﬁ - - (112,129,450) (112,129,450)
At 31 December 2021 and RIZZ-E+ZA=+-BRk
1 January 2022 —Z--%-f-H 3,072,673 11,177,217 450,746,363 464,996,253
New loans/financing originated BEENNER/BE 630,660 - - 630,660
Loans repaid during the year FEREEBHER
(other than write-offs) (s (887,945) (228) (34,734,667) (35,622,840)
Transfer to 12-month ECL (Stage 1) BRET_ERESR
BEBE (E-KR) - - - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL not BREEEERENZERES
credit-impaired (Stage 2) EEEBR(Z2ZRR) (1,797,863) 1,797,863 - -
Transfer to lifetime ECL BHEES ﬁéﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
credit-impaired (Stage 3) EEBR(2=RKR) (528,196) (3,061,242) 3,589,438 -
Total transfer between stages %E&‘ZFWJE%%@ £ (2,326,059) (1,263,379) 3,589,438 =
Movements due to changes in credit risk ERZHERNED 188,190 5,150,448 72,797,360 78,135,998
Write-offs Wfﬁ = - (46,639,903) (46,639,903)
At 31 December 2022 “E--#+-A=+-H 677,519 15,064,058 445,758,591 461,500,168

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

/Hj f% &?E Bﬁ %E (continued #&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE T - "+ _-_A=+—HIL&EE

28. W T H (#&)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

©)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, certain borrowers
failed to settle the loan principal and interests which constituted
a default event. Accordingly, ECL is changed to be measured
by lifetime ECL. The principal amount and the corresponding
ECL of HK$41,938,356 and HK$1,797,863,
HK$58,715,921 and HK$7,412,020,
reclassified from stage 1 to stage 2.

respectively, (2021:
respectively) were then

In addition, certain loans receivables which were defaulted by the
borrowers for more than 180 days. In the opinion of the directors,
these loans receivables were credit-impaired. The principal amount
and the corresponding ECL of HK$8,409,605 and HK$3,589,438,
(2021: HK$18,079,582 and HK$1,741,459,
respectively) were then reclassified from stage 1 and 2 to stage 3.

respectively,

Cconcentration of credit risk

Secured loans made up to approximately 11% (2021:
approximately 19%) of the total loans receivables as at
31 December 2022. Such collaterals comprised residential
properties and listed/unlisted equity securities pledged against the
balances. As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of collaterals
for the first mortgage loans which were mainly residential flats
based on its prevailing market prices amounted to approximately
Nil million (2021: The fair

value of properties collateralised for the second mortgage

approximately HK$13.20 million).

loans before discounting credit protections available to the first
mortgagees amounted to approximately HK$12.50 million (2021:
approximately HK$13.70 million). The fair value/net asset value
of other collaterals which mainly include listed/unlisted equity
securities amounted to approximately HK$88.09 million (2021:
approximately HK$37.80 million).

©

TREAREREERNMBE (&)

=&
:l/\

& NORERTE (&)
HE-ZT-_ZF+=ZA=+—81
FE BETEAIAREEEERR
R EMMBERELN Bt EHE
ﬁ)éiﬂéﬂw%u%iﬁ%ﬁ;@%ﬁféﬂ%%
E- A LABEREEEES A
41,938,356/8 T %.1,797,863/8 7t (=
T —F 55 AE58,715921%8 T &
7,412,020 T )BE B BB E — R ERE

DEEFE R

N ERABRE TEKRERE
BIBOK - EERA ZEERWEXRE
Hﬁﬁﬁﬁzfﬁozﬁﬁmﬁﬁai‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁé
B85 5 48,409,605 7T ) 3,589,438
B (ZE=Z—%:95418,079,582
BT & 1,741,459 7T ) BE 14 88 — P&

BRE_BREFHNEZE=MER-
EEAR L

7

—Z-=—F+=ZR=+—H8 A%
WEREEBKEREEN1% (ZF
Z—F 1 H19%) - AHEERRBER
EREHERNEEDEUR EH
FELFTRAZFSHR R_T-_—_F+=
A=+—HB BXRXERBERNER
m(BEEEM)BEBIMEASEN
AREEHNABEEL(ZEZ—F: 4
13,200,000 7C) « RITHBARE —
AIEAREARENSE ZXIERIBER
K ¥ R G A F{E A /12,500,000
B (ZT Z—4:4913,700,000%
o) cHMEFR(EBRE LM
TR ABH )N AFE EEFE
47 /488,090,000/8 T (— T = — 4
#937,800,00058 7T ) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %55 84 55 3 22 M 5 (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-ZT-_—F+-_A=-+—HIEFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(C)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Credit Risk And Impairment Assessment (Cont’d)
Other receivables and deposits

For other receivables and deposits, the management makes
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The management believes that there is no significant increase in
credit risk of these amounts since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12m ECL. For the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group assessed the ECL for
other receivables and deposits are insignificant and thus no loss
allowance is recognised.

Bank balances

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are reputable banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group considers
to have low credit risk.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its
payment obligations when they are due. The Group manages its
liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding from shareholders of the Company and adequate
committed lines of funding from financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements. The directors are responsible to ensure the
Group maintains sufficient capital funding and credit lines to meet
liquidity requirements. This is achieved by projecting cash flows on
a regular basis. The accounts department of the Group monitors
and reports the funding needs to management.

The following tables showed the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group's non-derivative
financial liabilities, which were based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end
of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% 3R 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—T-_—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

28. $RWT A (&

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(C)  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Liquidity Risk (Cont’d)

©

cREAREREERMBE (&

mEEERR (&)

More than
Weighted On demand 1 year but Total
Average or lessthan  not exceeding  undiscounted Carrying
Interest rate 1 year 2 years cash flows amount
BREXS SR-% KR
MEFHH = DR-F [ETREFE KRERELH REfE
HKS HKS HKS$
&L #ET E
At 31 December 2022 R=B--%+-RA=t+-H
Lease liabilities BERE 5.54% 766,097 - 766,097 662,804
Accruals and other payables FEHERREMENTE - 1,131,125 - 1,131,125 1,131,125
Total et | 1,897,222 - 1,897,222 1,793,929
At 31 December 2021 R-F--%+-A=+-H
Bond payable EfE% 8% 9,317,589 - - 9,000,000
Lease liabilties HEERE 5.54% 1,524,000 766,097 2,290,097 2,035,556
Accruals and other payables FEHERREMENTE - 1,149,389 - 1,149,389 1,149,389
Total g 11,990,978 766,097 3,439,486 12,184,945

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from lease liabilities, interest-bearing loans receivables, bank and
cash balances. Loans receivables and bank and cash balances at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The
Group does not use financial derivatives to hedge against the
interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out below.

) = L B

MEREBRIESBRT AN FEIARK
REnER™H MR E B KB
BeAEENMNERRIEREEE
BB EURABREFRUARRITERS
R MIFMNEREEMNEGFBZ
W EFIARIRITRR S &EHH RIS
AEBEHEBERSRENERR R QT
1B = @ B o 7K 52 [ 30 4 0 R 2 B 0T
AT ARSI R @R - A% E h g
BERZMEHRNERILT -

E—FReREEARRA —TZ_FFRK
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‘Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7S 84 7% R 72 M1 5 (continued &)
"~ For the year ended 31 December 2022 H#E_—_ZET_-_—F+_A=+—BItFE

28. EI»NANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

X
A

(C) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Interest Rate Risk (Cont’d)

Interest Rate Profile:

The following table, as reported to the management of the Group,
details the interest rate risk profile of the Group’s borrowings at
the end of the reporting period:

Fixed rate deposits/(borrowings): BEFHZEHER  (EHK) :

28. ¢RWT R (&

€ =REAREEAZRRBE (&)

MERER (&)

TRFFIMAEEEREE2H BR
7N £2 (B {8 3R A ) 2 L Bt O R 15 B 3R

A .
o

Loans receivables JE W B 3 721,903,027
Bond payable FEAI (& 55 (9,000,000)
Lease liabilities HEAE (2,035,556)
710,867,471

Variable rate deposits: FEIFIEFER:
Loans receivables FEUE K 1,983,765
Bank balances RITHE A 23,146,374
25,130,139

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #=5

I FE IR TSI B (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE T - —F+-_A=-+—HILFE
28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Interest Rate Risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity Analysis

The sensitivity analysis below is presented for the Group's bank
deposits and loans receivables and payable at floating interest
rates.

Change in basis points

LHEH
plip))

k- Jonfent- 3

Effect on profit after tax
HRHERRNYE

2022 2022

k- et k. et

28. $W I H (&)

cRHEAREEERMBE (&)

MERER (&)
HBE T

REBRFEFETOIRITEFRIAR
JRE s K e B R BURE 0 AT 2 51 40
To

Effect on equity
Hignnye

Bank deposits BATK +/-50 98,496 +-115,732 98,496 +-115,732
Interest-bearing loans receivables R EER +-50 - +-8,282 - +-8,282
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change THMBRES BT RENEEE

in the Group's profit after tax (and retained profits) and other
components of consolidated equity that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to fair value interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period. In
respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from
floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the
end of the reporting period, the impact on the Group's profit after
tax (and retained profits) and other components of consolidated
equity is estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
or income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as 2021.

ERBEMREL YCEAREN
AEAKEMFANRREHRESR
SEEBEAFENERBHERTA
B S B A B Bl 120 A (o AR e )
RgaRanEManRoseEEs
MR E S RARER RS BREF
BRFBNERENTETAMELENR
ERNERRT S HARKRBERTR
A (R AR i F) B AR & 7 o E Al
HRFDNFEBIZBANEEEHE T
BRXRWANFEZEETMH-
DR — T —FRARNEEETT -

F-ERAEAESEARAF —B-_FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 5% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_ZT_-_—_F+_A=+—HLFE

29. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 2. MEEBFTEA BB ZHER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below showing the detail changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TREINASEREZTHMELEBEZE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. PHABE BEREKIFRSEH -HETD
Liabilities arising from financing activities were those for which cash flows FEXANBEARERECKLRERKE
were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated ERERERAEEGEEBRERERSE
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. REBEEHNRERENAE
Consideration Bond Lease
WEVELS payable liabilities
FEfH (B FE i &5 HEBRE
HK$
BT
At 1 January 2021 RZE=Z—-F—-A—H 1,059,958 10,081,096 4,050,764 15,191,818
Proceeds from financing activities BEEBDFMENE 900,000 - - 900,000
Payment of lease liabilities HEBBEER - - (2,015,208) (2,015,208)
Payment of consideration payable ERREMNR (2,000,000) - - (2,000,000)
Payment of bond payable EREREH - (1,000,000) - (1,000,000)
Interest paid ERFE - (796,274) (76,392) (872,666)
Interest expenses FEHRX 40,042 788,164 76,392 904,598
At 31 December 2021 and 1January 2022 RZZ-_—F+-A=+—-HBK
—Z--F—-f—H - 9,072,986 2,035,556 11,108,542
Payment of lease liabilities HEBEMNK - - (1,372,752) (1,372,752)
Payment of bond payable ERESRTH - (9,000,000) - (9,000,000)
Interest paid ERFE = (472,679) (151,248) (623,927)
Interest expenses FERXZ - 399,693 151,248 550,941
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZF+ZA=+—-H - - 662,804 662,804
Analysed by: EVIE
At 31 December 2022 R-T--_F+-A=+-H
~ Lease liabilities -HERE - - 662,804 662,804
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—%5+-A=+—H
- Bond payable -ERESR - 9,000,000 - 9,000,000
~ Interest payable recognised in accruals and ~ — R BT 5 B R H ft e A FUB
other payable HEREELFIS - 72,986 - 72,986
- Lease liabilities -HEaE - - 2,035,556 2,035,556

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% 3R 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE_ZT_-_—F+_A=+—HIFE

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30.BERRS
COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL OF THE TEEFEEEAENHE
GROUP
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management FR - EERHMFEZERABNGFMHOT

during the year was as follows:

HHEERN (BEFE-

Short term employee benefits including

salaries, paid annual leaves and BHFBRIER)
sick leaves 2,434,020
Performance related bonus RN -
Post-employment benefits & B3R IKAEF 35,750
2,469,770

F-ERAEAESEARAF —B-_FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 5% %R 72 Mt 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE_ZT_-_—_F+_A=+—HLFE

31. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 31. KX RIFEMEB A FIFEE
OF THE COMPANY

Details of the principal subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the R —FR_FT-_—F+_A=+—
Company as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were as follows: H ARREERBERBEZZEZMB AR
ME BRI

First Holdings Consortium Limited British Virgin Islands US$19,230,767 100 - Investment holding
ARRAEE 19,230,767 7T RELR

First Credit (China) Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100 - Inactive

E-EREH(PE)ERLAR 0 1% hmex

Asia Wealth Financial Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$90 100 - Investment holding
ARRLES 9P0ETT REER

Capital First Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding

ERE-BRERLA ABRRES (B REZR

Gorgeous Investment Holding Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 100 - Inactive
AERREE 100% 7T hmex

First Credit Limited Hong Kong HK$153,550,000 - 100 Provision and

arrangement of
credit facilities

E-ERUBERAR &R 153,550,007 7 RERZHEERE

Honour Event Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Inactive
AERREE 1% hmex

Asia Wealth Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$90,000,000 - 100 Investment in securities

TMAEEFERRA A 90,000,007 7T BHRE

First Credit (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Inactive

E-EREB(FR)ERAR i 10,000/ T gmex

First Credit Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Property holding

E-ERBERAERLA ik 1AL BENE

Note: All the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies. fisE: LFrBREBARE BEREMT AR -

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED ~Annual Report 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 & 84 7% 3R 22 Mt 5T (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—T-_—F+-_A=-+—HIFE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(A)

B)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

2. ARAIMBRARRFREE

B

(A)

EN/NCT RN

Non-current assets ERFEE
Investments in subsidiaries R ERRHIRE 788 65,524,704
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and BEBNRE -ZE2R

other receivables H i FE U FRTE 1,275,549 1,661,897
Due from subsidiaries AN IEPNGIE /S 268,460,370 325,004,112
Bank and cash balances RITRB &R 1,354,526 1,307,058
Total current assets MEVAERE 271,090,445 327,973,067
Current liabilities RE&E
Due to subsidiaries JES B B A R R 788 788
Total current liabilities mBAERE 788 788
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 271,089,657 327,972,279
NET ASSETS BEFE 271,090,445 393,496,983
Capital and Reserves BERRGEE
Share capital g 7 25 72,576,000 72,576,000
Reserves i 32(B) 198,514,445 320,920,983
TOTAL EQUITY WS EE 271,090,445 393,496,983

MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY'S RESERVE (B) ARQAFHEEE

Share Capital Contributed  Accumulated

premium reserve surplus losses

btk R BXRE SAEG Rl

HKS HKS$ HK$ HKS$
At 1 January 2021 RZZ=-%-f—-H 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470 (318,587,268 389,814,679
Loss for the year ENEE - - - (68,893,696)  (68,893,69)
At 31 December 2021 RIBZ-F+ZA=1-H 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470  (387,480,964) 320,920,983
Loss for the year EREER - - - (122,406,538)  (122,406,538)
At 31 December 2022 R-B-Zf+-A=+-H 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470  (509,887,502) 198,514,445

F-ERAEAESEARAF —B-_FFH
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~ Financial Summary & B2

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Revenue, other income and
other gain and loss

R E S

Wz EIRALAR

(Loss)/profit before tax
Income tax credit/(expense)

(Loss)/profit for the year

(Loss)/profit and total
comprehensive (expense)/
income attribute to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Hithlhzs kBB 60,998,435 36,865,540 84,971,551 100,123,307
BREA (B1B) /&7 (26,622,536)  (358,389,707)  (157,326,068) 31,599,901
FEREe,/ (BY) (4,914,434) (9,221,821) 24,432,997 (5,674,308)
FR(BE)/EF (31,536,970)  (367,611,528)  (132,893,071) 25,925,593
DTFALRES (BE)

BHRE2E (H%)/

[l ON-t B
ARAREBA (32,110,970)  (367,611,528)  (132,893,071) 25,925,593
FEE R ES - - - -

HE- SERES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company

BERH 472,127,890 508516,669 868446554 995,618,539
RERE (12,295509)  (16,573,318) (8,891,675) (3,170,589)
459,832,381 491,943,351 859,554,879 992,447,950
ARARHE ARG ES
459,832,381 491,943,351 859,554,879 992,447,950
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